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Du Yunbin 1@
Chairman T /&

On behalf of the Board of Directors of CNNC International Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), | am
pleased to present the annual results of the Group for the year ended
31st December, 2016 (the “Year”).

BUSINESS

Due to the tight cash flow position of the Group’s 37.2% owned
associate, Société des Mines d’Azelik S.A. (“Somina”), the production
of its uranium mine in Niger has temporarily been suspended since
February 2015. After heavy losses incurred by Somina in previous
years, the carrying value of the Group's investment in Somina has been
reduced to zero in 2015 and the Group would not share any further
loss of Somina in 2016.

The Group paid its attention to the natural uranium trading in 2016
and recorded a substantial increase in revenue of approximately 228%
compared to last year. Unfortunately, the natural uranium market price
continued to drop during 2016 causing the Group to incur losses.
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After the new Mongolian officials in charging of the uranium mining
sector were appointed in 2016, the Group continues the negotiation
with the Mongolian authorities for the terms in the joint venture
agreement for the joint arrangement to develop the Mongolian
uranium resources project.

RESULTS

The Group reported revenue of approximately HK$189,429,000
(2015: approximately HK$57,755,000) for the Year. Gross loss was
approximately HK$15,108,000 (2015: gross profit approximately
HK$1,585,000). Mainly due to the absence of the impairment loss on
amount due from an associate and the share of loss of an associate
in 2016, the total comprehensive expense for the Year attributable to
owners of the Company was substantially reduced to approximately
HK$28,002,000 (2015: approximately HK$220,711,000).

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

The Group will continue to engage in uranium trading business and
expand and diversify its business by leveraging on the strengths of
China National Nuclear Corporation, the ultimate holding company of
the Company, in the field of nuclear energy.

The Group will closely monitor the situation and continue to work
with the other shareholders of Somina for its future plans.

The Group will also continue to negotiate on the formation of the
joint venture company with the Mongolian Government and complete
all the procedures for the application of mining licenses.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to take this
opportunity to express my heartfelt appreciation to our shareholders,
customers and business partners for their long-standing supports and
my gratitude to the Group’s management team and staff for their
endeavours and contributions in the past year.

Du Yunbin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20th March, 2017
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MARKET OVERVIEW

The principal activities of the Group remained as the development
of uranium resources assets and trading of natural uranium products
during the year ended 31st December, 2016 (the “Year”). The overall
uranium products market sentiment has been one of anxiety about
the future due to uncertainty regarding lacklustre demand and a
continued supply glut. As reported in the Group's Interim Report
2016, the market prices of uranium products declined in the first
half of 2016. Such market prices continued to decline further during
the second half of 2016 and the trading results of the Group has
been adversely affected. During the Year, the Group had expanded
its trading activities through concluding business transactions with
reputable customers and suppliers with a view to establish the Group's
market position as a natural uranium trader.

The application of the mining licenses of the Mongolian uranium
resources project has been delayed due to the changes in the relevant
Mongolian government officials during the Year. New officials have
been appointed in 2016 and the Group has resumed negotiations with
the officials for setting up a joint venture company with the Mongolian
government for the project and finalising the application procedures
for the mining licenses.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, the Group reported a revenue of approximately
HK$189,429,000 (2015: approximately HK$57,755,000) from its
operating business, an increase of approximately 228%. However,
as the natural uranium market price continued to drop during 2016,
a gross loss of approximately HK$15,108,000 (2015: gross profit
of approximately HK$1,585,000) was recorded. The gross loss was
resulted from the sales of the inventories which were purchased in
previous year at higher prices. If the inventories were not sold during
the Year, impairment loss would have been required to be provided
for an amount which approximates to the gross loss of the Group
during the Year.

Other income, gains and losses of approximately HK$3,097,000 (2015:
approximately HK$4,792,000) were mainly from interest income during
the Year. Such amount was approximately 35.4% lowered than that
of last year due to the absence of compensation of approximately
HK$735,000 from the litigation by a subsidiary company in Mongolia
and the interest of approximately HK$2,054,000 for the loan advance
to its associate, Somina, recorded in last year.
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The selling and distributing expenses amounted to approximately
HK$546,000 during the Year. The corresponding expenses during
last year were insignificant. The administrative expenses of
approximately HK$15,635,000 (2015: approximately HK$18,363,000)
was approximately 14.9% below to that of last year, affirming the
achievement of the Group's effort on cost control.

In light of the deteriorating financial position of its associate, Somina,
the Group had made full provision of approximately HK$72,898,000
for the amount due from Somina and also shared the loss of Somina
of approximately HK$135,715,000 in 2015. As the carrying amount of
interest in Somina was nil at 31st December, 2015, the Group is no
longer required to share any further losses in Somina in the Year, until
it becomes a positive net asset position. For further details, please
refer to the Annual Report 2015 and the Interim Report 2016 of the
Company.

During the Year, the Group did not record any interest expenses (2015:
Nil). The Group is currently free of any interest bearing debt. No tax
charge was provided as the Group incurred tax losses during the Year
(2015: Nil).

COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSE FOR THE YEAR

Summing up the combined effects of the foregoing, loss for the
Year was substantially reduced from last year and amounted to
approximately HK$28,192,000 (2015: approximately HK$220,599,000).
After taken into account of the other comprehensive income
of approximately HK$190,000 (2015:

HK$112,000) of the exchange differences arising on translation to

expense of approximately

presentation currency, the total comprehensive expense for the Year
amounted to approximately HK$28,002,000 (2015: approximately
HK$220,711,000).

FUTURE STRATEGIES

The Group has expanded its natural uranium trading business by
concluding business transactions with a number of customers and
suppliers. The Group will continue to monitor and research into the
natural uranium trading market with a view to further expand its
trading activities, whilst waiting for the recovery of the natural uranium
market price to develop its uranium resources projects.

Somina is still facing severe cash flow problems and will not be able
to resume production within a short period of time. The Group will
closely monitor the situation and continue to work with the other
shareholders of Somina for its future plans.
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For the Mongolian project, the new Mongolian government officials
in charge of the Group’s uranium resources project are in place. The
Group will continue to negotiate with the Mongolian Government
for the setting up of a joint venture company for the project. The
project has not been, to a material extent, adversely affected by
its slow progress, as the market price of natural uranium products
has remained low during the Year. The Group intends to time the
production to match with the recovery of the natural uranium market
price.

The Group aims to expand and diversify its business by leveraging
on the strengths of China National Nuclear Corporation, the ultimate
holding company of the Company, in the field of nuclear energy.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES
As at 31st December, 2016, the Group employed 15 (2015: 15) full-
time employees of whom 2 (2015: 2) were based in Hong Kong,
8 (2015: 8) were based in Beijing and 5 (2015: 5) were based in
Mongolia. Total staff costs incurred during the Year amounted to
approximately HK$6,599,000 (2015: approximately HK$6,877,000).

Remuneration policies and packages for the Group’s employees are
based on their performance, working experiences and conditions
prevailing in the industry. Depending on the financial results of the
Group and the performance of individual employees, eligible staff
may also be granted discretionary performance bonuses, in addition
to basic salaries, retirement schemes and medical benefit schemes.
To raise work quality and management abilities of its employees, the
Group provides job rotation, in-house training and external training
courses to employees.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

2016, the Group did not have any bank
2015: Nil). The Group had net
current assets amounting to approximately HK$316,184,000 (at 31st
December, 2015: approximately HK$343,566,000) and the current
liabilities amounting to approximately HK$250,265,000 (at 31st
December, 2015: approximately HK$38,831,000) as at 31st December,
2016. During the Year, the Group continued trading in uranium

As at 31st December,
borrowings (at 31st December,

products, and as at 31st December, 2016, the Group had trade
receivables of approximately HK$166,487,000 (at 31st December,
2015: Nil) and trade payables of approximately HK$210,190,000
2015: Nil).
plant and equipment were approximately HK$327,000 during the
Year (2015: approximately HK$204,000).
exploration and evaluation assets were approximately HK$1,950,000
(2015: approximately HK$2,433,000). The Group did not have any
commitment to purchase additional property, plant and equipment that

(at 31st December, Capital expenditures on property,

Capital expenditures on

had been contracted for but not provided in the consolidated financial
statements as at 31st December, 2016 (at 31st December, 2015: Nil).

During the Year, net cash outflow from operating activities amounted
to approximately HK$65,324,000 (2015: cash inflow approximately
HK$143,519,000).
decreased from approximately HK$348,778,000 as at 31st December,
2015 to approximately HK$285,020,000 as at 31st December, 2016.

The Group’s cash on hand and bank balances

Total shareholders’ funds decreased from approximately
HK$569,885,000 as at 31st December, 2015 to approximately
HK$541,883,000 as at 31st December, 2016, mainly due to the
loss during the Year. Due to the substantial increase in both trade
receivables and payables, the gearing ratio, in terms of total debts to
total assets, increased to approximately 0.32 (at 31st December, 2015:
approximately 0.06) as at 31st December, 2016.
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ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

There were no material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and
associated companies for the Year.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group's income, expenditure of raw materials, manufacturing,
investment and borrowings are mainly denominated in USD, HKD,
Mongolian Tugrigs and RMB. Fluctuations of the exchange rates of
Mongolian Tugrigs and RMB against foreign currencies could affect
the operating costs of the Group. Currencies other than Mongolian
Tugrigs and RMB were relatively stable during the Year, the Group did
not expose to significant foreign exchange risk. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy for hedging significant
foreign currency exposure.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There has been no significant change in the capital structure of the
Group since 31st December, 2015.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

Apart from the 37.2% of the share capital in Somina held by Ideal
Mining Limited pledged to a bank for banking facilities granted to
Somina, there was no charge on the Group’s assets during the Year
(2015: apart from the shares in Somina, Nil).

PURCHASE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SHARES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares.
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SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

This report is made with reference to the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide as described in Appendix 27 of the
Listing Rules and Guidance set out by The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. This report covers the Group’s overall performance in
the environmental and social aspects of the business operations.

Unless otherwise stated, this environmental and social report covers
the overall performance of Hong Kong headquarters, Beijing office
and Mongolia office for the year ended 31st December, 2016 in the
two main areas: environmental and social.

ENGAGING OUR STAKEHOLDERS

The Group has made every effort to engage all of its stakeholders,

including shareholders and investors, employees, customers, suppliers
and business partners, government and regulators, the environment

and the community to achieve sustainable development.

A. Environmental
Types of emissions the Group has involved in the reporting
period were mainly electricity, gasoline and paper. The Group’s
business does not involve in production-related air, water, and
land pollutions which are regulated under national laws and
regulations.

Total floor area coverage for the Group was 936 sg.m. Of which
the floor area coverage for Hong Kong headquarters, Beijing
office and Mongolia office was 114 sq.m, 722 sq.m and 100
sg.m respectively.
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Greenhouse Gas Emission

i =R E

/I

Scope of greenhouse
gas emission

Emission sources

Emission

Total emission

(in tonnes of CO,e) (in percentage)

HHE HHE
BERBHREE HEBR R (AWE — S| 1L i & & 5t) (B5LL)
Scope 1
£ =1
Direct emission Petroleum consumed by vehicles
BEREEX BEEERZ UM 8.71 7.22%
Scope 2
#E2
Indirect emission Purchased electricity
A 3% PR 1K EHR 110.98 92.04%
Scope 3
#E3
Other indirect emission Paper consumption
H b 5 BE IR HRH 0.89 0.74%
Total
CE 120.58 100%
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Greenhouse gas emission intensity

A 2 5 58 P B R

Unit

B i
Total greenhouse gas emission (a) RERBEENEZ@) tCO,e W-_EtiREE 120.58
Total floor area of coverage (b) PREBEZ MEEEE(D) sq.m Frx% 936
Emission intensity (c)=(a)/(b) BERUE E (Q=(a)/(b) tCO,e/sq.m B AOKME 0.13

There were approximately 120.58 tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent greenhouse gases emitted from the Group’s operation
in the reporting period. The annual emission intensity was
approximately 0.13 tCO2e/sq.m.

Gasoline

A total of approximately 5,189 litres of gasoline were used for
motor vehicles by the Group in the reporting period, contributing
to approximately 8.71 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent.

The Group’s Hong Kong headquarters and Mongolia office
disposed of their vehicles in the reporting period, thus reducing
gas emission. The Group encourages green travelling policy to
reduce the usage of public transport and to lower gas emission.

Electricity

The electricity consumption by the Group was approximately
158,043 kWh, contributing to approximately 110.98 tonnes of
carbon dioxide equivalent.

The Group always uses energy savings electrical equipment,
encourages employees to save energy and enhances electrical
equipment efficiency.

Paper

A total of approximately 0.2 tonne of paper was used for
daily office operations by the Group in the reporting period,
contributing to approximately 0.89 tonne of carbon dioxide
equivalent.

The Group encourages paperless office environment, reducing
the paper usage and requests double-sided printing.
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SOCIAL

(1)

CNNC International Limited

Employment and labour practices

B. #&
(1) EEREZETEH

Employment 118
The Group had a total number of 15 full time employees RZE—R"F+ZA=+—8"
as of 31st December, 2016. REBELXBISHEHBES -
Employee’s location
distribution Hong Kong PRC Mongolia
&St E 5 FE oh B X pE E
No. Percentage No. Percentage No. Percentage
A 171 A ]z A (124
—E-RF 2 14% 8 53% 5 33%
Employee’s sex distribution Male Female
EEH 5 Bt T
No. Percentage No. Percentage
A 124 A 124
—E—NF 8 53% 7 47%
Employee’s age distribution 26-35 36-45 46-55 56 & above
EEERIE 26-35 36-45 46-55 56% LAk
No. Percentage No. Percentage No. Percentage No. Percentage
A it A® it AW itk AW fhbt
—E-RE 6 40% 4 271% 4 27% 1 6%

The Group offers competitive remuneration, promotional
opportunity, compensation and benefit packages to attract
and retains talents. Salaries are reviewed and adjusted on
a yearly basis based on performance appraisals and the
market trend. Employees are entitled to year-end bonus,
mandatory provident fund, social security contributions
and various types of paid leave in addition to annual leave
and sick leave. In the reporting period, the workforce was
stable and had low turnover rate.

The Group commits to ensure safe and healthy working
environment for employees, and equal opportunities for
job advancement and benefits. Regardless of their age,
nationality, gender, religion and ethnical backgrounds, all
employees are treated fairly without discrimination.
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Employees’ health and safety

The Group regularly reviews the employees’ health and
safety procedure to safeguard employees’ well-being.
Annual medical checks and safety equipment are provided
to employees. Briefing, training, news and tips are provided
to employees regularly to raise their health and safety
awareness.

The Group has a sound and effective health and safety
procedure, no casualty from work in the reporting period.

Development and training

The Group pays great attention to staff development
and training to enhance their technical skills and
professionalism. The Group provided its employees
multiple external and internal trainings in professional
skills, management, linguistics and business, and a total
of 224 hours training courses were conducted in the
reporting period.

B S #FHEZE

AEEEHRAEEZRERR
2RAURBEERE S5
REBEEBRMTEIERER
EREHREMD - REBATE
MAREERUBE  HY AR
RRR REBIRERZZE

2yh

F o

AEEIERRBERZ2HEE
B REEHAREABCE
f o

KR KI5

AEEBEERETHIAER
BEBERENBESE - 15
EREREHRN AR TRES AR
Epe ER BT BAHEN
W AEE A 2240
Z YR -

2016
Employee training data & S 3% 3l 4 &t —T-RE
Total number of employees EE B 15
Total training hours 15 91 48 BF 21 224
Average training hours per employee A5 85 5| By 8 15

Employees’ communication

The Group strongly believes employees are the most
important assets of the Group and pays a key role in the
development of the Group. The Group, through various
communication channels, motivates its employees in the
reporting period. The Group adopts weekly meetings
to exchange working ideas, plans and to build up
effective communication channels among employees and
management. The Group also organizes group functions,
tea meetings to enhance loyalty and staff relationship.

Labour standard

The Group strictly follows the local labour jurisdiction in
employment management. No child nor forced labour was
involved in the Group’s operations in the reporting period.
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(2) Operating practices

3)

Supply chain management

A strict tendering process is in place to provide an open,
fair and transparent platform for securing the suppliers for
procurement. The Group strictly follows the procedures for
suppliers selection, decision making, and contract signing
to ensure the legality, reasonableness and regulation of
the process.

The main activities of the Group are trading in natural
uranium products. The main suppliers or brokers range
from the USA, Europe and Western Asia. The business
partners range top of their trade and are reputable
companies.

Product responsibility

The uranium resources project of the Group has not
reached the production stage. The main activities of
the Group are trading in natural uranium products. The
Group utilises the storage facilities of the international
natural uranium conversion centres to store its mercantile
products. The delivery of products takes place in the
conversion centres. The responsibilities of buyer, seller and
conversion centres are clearly defined in each respective
contract.

Anti-corruption

The Group commits to manage all business without undue
influence and has regarded honesty, integrity, and fairness
as its core values. All employees are required to strictly
follow the code of conduct and Group’s policy to prevent
potential bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
The Group's code of conduct states clearly the anti-bribery,
forbidding the personal relationship with suppliers and
contractors and discipline requirements. Employees are
required to sign the code to ensure the reputation of the
Group would not be impaired by fraud, dishonesty and
bribery.

Community

Community Investment

The Group actively participates in community charity.
During the reporting period, the Group through donations
and courtesy visits supported the lesser community and
improved their life quality. Beijing and Mongolia office
made donations to poor rural areas in the PRC and local
tribe in Mongolia respectively.
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CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the code provisions laid down in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the
year ended 31st December, 2016 (the “Year").

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Members of the Board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) are
collectively responsible for overseeing the business and affairs of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) that aims at enhancing
the Company’s value for stakeholders. The Board is responsible for
making all major matters of the Company including: the approval
and monitoring of all major policies of the Group, monitoring
financial and operating performance, ensuring the integrity of the
Group's accounting and financial reporting systems, the declaration
of interim dividend, making recommendation of final dividend or
other distributions, overall strategies and budgets, internal control
and risk management systems, notifiable and connected transactions,
nomination of directors, Company Secretary and other significant
financial and operational matters. The day-to-day management,
administration and operation of the Company are delegated to the
senior management. The delegated functions are periodically reviewed
by the Board. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the abovementioned officers.

The Board currently comprises a total of seven members including two
executive directors, two non-executive directors and three independent
non-executive directors (“INEDs”), whose details are set out on pages
30 to 33. Members of the Board have different professional, industry
experiences and backgrounds so as to bring in valuable contributions
and advices for the development of the Group’s business. More than
one-third of the Board are INEDs and one of the INEDs has appropriate
related financial management expertise as required under the Listing
Rules.

Directors have full access to accurate, relevant and timely information
of the Group through management and are able to obtain independent
professional advices on issues whenever deemed necessary by the
directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Regular meetings are held by the Board at least four times a year to
discuss strategies and business issues, including financial performance
of the Group, and additional meetings will be held when necessary.
The Company has held regular board meetings in accordance with the
Listing Rules, the CG Code and also the Articles of Association of the
Company, formal notice and board meeting documents are also given
in advance to all directors. During the Year, the Board held four regular
meetings. Members of the Board can attend the meetings either in
person or through electronic means of communication. A record of
the directors’ attendance at regular Board meetings is set out on page
26.

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are segregated
in order to reinforce their independence and accountability. Their respective
responsibilities are clearly established and set out in writing. The Chairman
leads the Board's workings and proceedings, while the Chief Executive
Officer is responsible for implementing the Group’s strategies and policies
and for conducting the Group’s businesses.

THE TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The term of office of each of the non-executive directors is the
period from his appointment to the time of retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all of the INEDs are independent.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. Upon the Company’s specific enquiry of each
director, all the directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code and the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by directors adopted by the Company
during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group. With the assistance of the
accounting department, which is under the supervision of the
management of the Company, the directors ensure that the financial
statements of the Group have been properly prepared in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
directors also ensure that the publication of the accounts of the Group
is in a timely manner.

A report of the independent auditor on the Group’s accounts is set
out in this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Pursuant to the CG Code, directors should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. During the Year, all directors have participated
in appropriate continuous professional development activities by
way of attending training seminar or reading material on legal and
regulatory subjects relevant to the Company’s business or to the
directors’ duties and responsibilities.

INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND INTERNAL AUDIT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in maintaining sound and
effective internal control system for the Group to safeguard investments
of the shareholders and assets of the Company at all times.

The system of internal controls and risk management aims to
help achieving the Group’s business objectives, safeguarding assets
and maintaining proper accounting records for provision of reliable
financial information. However, the design of the system is to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement
in the financial statements or loss of assets and to manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure when business objectives are being sought.

Management has conducted regular reviews during the Year on the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management system
covering all material controls in area of financial, operational and
compliance controls, various functions for risks management as well

as physical and information system security.

Procedures have been designed for the business objectives, safeguard
asset against unauthorized wuse or disposition, ensure proper
maintenance of books and records for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use or publication, and to ensure compliance

with relevant legislations and regulations.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND INTERNAL AUDIT (continves

Internal Audit Department has conducted an on going independent
review on the effectiveness of the system of internal control and
risk management of the Group and considers it to be adequate and
effective. Reports on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
on difference areas had been submitted to the Audit Committee. It is
noted that there is no significant areas of concern which may affect
the effectiveness of the internal control system.

Throughout the Year, the Board is satisfied that the Group has fully
complied with the code provisions on risk management and internal
control as set out in Section C.2 of the CG code.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the Year, the remuneration paid to the Company’s auditor, Messrs
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, is set out as follows:

REBERE BEREERRNI
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Services rendered

Fees paid/payable

Frig AR 75 Bt FE 18l &
2016 2015
—EB—-RE —ZT—EHF
HK$000 HK$'000
BETIT BT T
Audit services ET RS 1,350 1,280
Non-audit services IEEETARTS
(i.e. Taxation, Interim Financial Statement Review  (F{ 7% - R HISR & &1
and Professional Service) NEER®) 83 533
1,433 1,813
AUDIT COMMITTEE BEZEEE
The Company’s Audit Committee was first established in December AR

2002 and its terms of reference are available on the Company’s
website.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the
Group's financial reporting system, internal control procedures, risk
management, assessing the adequacy of the human resources of the
Group's accounting and finance department and maintaining good
and independent communications with the management as well as
external auditor of the Company. Its current members include:

Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
Mr. Xu Shouyi
Mr. Cui Liguo
Mr. Zhang Lei
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AU DIT COM M ITTE E (continued)

Three out of four members of the Audit Committee are the INEDs of
the Company. Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry has appropriate related
financial management expertise as required under the Listing Rules.
None of them is employed by or otherwise affiliated with former or
existing auditor of the Company.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held two meetings and also
had two meetings with the management and external auditors of the
Company. The minutes of the Audit Committee meetings were tabled
to the Board for noting and for action by the Board where appropriate.
The attendance of each member is set out on page 26.

During the Year, the Audit Committee reviewed the Group's interim
and annual report for the year ended 31st December, 2016 and the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group. The Audit
Committee also reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control system and made recommendations to the
Board.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company’s Remuneration Committee was established in

September 2005. Its current members include:

Mr. Cui Liguo (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
Ms. Wang Ying

Mr. Xu Shouyi

Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry

Mr. Zhang Lei

Three out of five members of the Remuneration Committee are the
INEDs of the Company. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the Company’s website.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for the remuneration of directors and reviewing their specific
remuneration package for directors and senior management, including
terms of salary, discretionary bonus scheme, benefits in kind, pension
rights, compensation payments and other long-term incentive schemes
by reference to market conditions, performance of the Group and the
individual and corporate goals and objectives as set by the Board from
time to time.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continuea)

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the Year. The
minutes of the Remuneration Committee meeting were tabled to
the Board for noting and for action by the Board where appropriate.
The attendance of each member is set out on page 26. During
the meeting, the committee members discussed the policy for the
remuneration of executive director and senior management and
assessed the performance of executives.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
On 27th March, 2012, the Board approved the set up of the
Nomination Committee of the Company. Its current members include:

Mr. Du Yunbin (Chairman of the Nomination Committee)
Ms. Wang Ying

Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry

Mr. Cui Liguo

Mr. Zhang Lei

Three out of five members of the Nomination Committee are the INEDs
of the Company and the Chairman of the committee is the Chairman
of the Board. The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
are available on the Company’s website.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board at least
annually; making recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy; identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and selecting
or making recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships; assessing the independence
of the INEDs; and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession planning
for directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Year. The
attendance of each member is set out on page 26.
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REVIEW OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FUNCTIONS

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility of developing
and maintaining sound and effective corporate governance within the
Group and is committed to ensuring that an effective governance
structure is put in place to continuously review and improve the
corporate governance practices, including to review and monitor
the training and continuous professional development of directors
and senior management; within the Group in light of the evolving
operating environment and regulatory requirements.

The Group has adopted appropriate policies and practices on corporate
governance and the Board would make recommendations to the Group
by reviewing the operation of the Group from time to time. The Group
has adopted a code of conduct and compliance manual applicable
to its employees and directors. The Board confirmed that the Group
has complied with the legal and regulatory requirements and ensures
the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure regarding
corporate governance.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy in line with the
amendments to the CG Code regarding board diversity.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Li Philip Sau Yan (“Mr. Li"), is responsible
to the Board for ensuring that Board procedures are followed and
Board activities are efficiently and effectively conducted. Mr. Li has been
appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company since 5th November,
2008. Mr. Li is also responsible for ensuring that the Board is fully appraised
of the relevant corporate governance developments relating to the Group
and facilitating the professional development of the directors.

Mr. Li confirmed that he has complied with all the required
qualifications, experience and training requirements under Rule 3.28
and Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Board and management shall ensure shareholders’ rights and all
shareholders are treated equitably and fairly. Pursuant to the Articles
of Association of the Company, any shareholder entitled to receive
notice of and to attend and vote at a general meeting of the Company
is entitled to appoint another person as his proxy to attend and vote
instead of him.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Chairmen of the various Board committees, or failing the Chairmen,
any member from the respective committees, must attend the annual
general meetings of the Company to address shareholders’ queries.
External auditor shall also be invited to attend the Company’s annual
general meetings and are available to assist the Directors in addressing
queries from shareholders relating to the conduct of the audit and
the preparation and content of their auditor’s report.

RIGHT TO CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY
GENERAL MEETING AND PUT FORWARD
PROPOSALS

Pursuant to Article 68 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
extraordinary general meetings can be convened on the written
requisition of any two or more members of the Company deposited at
the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the
Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office,
specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists,
provided that such requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company which carries the right of voting at extraordinary general
meetings of the Company. Extraordinary general meetings may also
be convened on the written requisition of any one member of the
Company which is a recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s))
deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or,
in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the
registered office, specifying the objects of the meeting and signed
by the requisitionist, provided that such requisitionist held as at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at
extraordinary general meetings of the Company. If the Board does not
within 21 days from the date of deposit of the requisition proceed
duly to convene the meeting, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any
of them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may convene the extraordinary general meeting in the
same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may
be convened by the Board provided that any meeting so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the date
of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.
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RIGHT TO PUT ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD
Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All enquiries
can be in writing and sent for the attention of the Company Secretary
in one of the following ways:

1. By post: CNNC International Limited
Unit 3009, 30th Floor
No. 118 Connaught Road West
Hong Kong
By facsimile: (852) 2598 1010
By email: info@cnncintl.com

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company sees high quality reporting as an essential element
in building successful relationship with the Company’s shareholders.
The information provided will not only comply with the different
requirements in force but to provide additional information to
enhancing communications with shareholders and the investment
public. It is part of a continuous communication that encompasses
meetings, announcements to the market and circulars to shareholders
as well as periodic written reports in the form of preliminary
announcement of results and interim and annual reports.

The Company also maintains a corporate website on which
comprehensive information of the Group is provided.

There was no significant change in the constitutional documents of
the Company during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AT BOARD, EEE  EEREEE  HFNE
AUDIT, REMUNERATION AND NOMINATION EEREZEZEEETERERE
COMMITTEES’ MEETINGS, GENERAL XEZHFELH
MEETINGS
Audit Remuneration Nomination  Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee  General
Meetings  Meetings Meeting Meetlng Meeting
EER BRZEET HHNEET REEET RFBEE
EREE EE] EE] uﬁ XE
Total number of meetings held AEENETZEREE 4 2 1 1 1
during the Year
Number of meetings attended: R eRRE:
Chairman and Non-executive FEEE
Director BTES
Mr. Du Yunbin HEM LA 4(100%) N/A N/A 1(100%)  1(100%)
TER ER
Chief Executive Officer and THEZS
Executive Director BITEE
Ms. Wang Ying FERLL 4(100%) N/A 1(100%) 1(100%)  1(100%)
ER
Vice General Manager and BAERE
Executive Director BITEE
Mr. Gao Shangxiong R E 2(100%) N/A N/A N/A N/A
(appointed on 1st June, 2016) (RZB-—"E~A-BLA) T A T A TEA THA
Non-executive Director EHTEE
Mr. Xu Shouyi BRIBEE 4(100%)  2(100%) 1(100%) N/A 1(100%)
~ER
Independent Non-executive BUEHRTES
Directors
Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry REMLE 4(100%) 2(100%) 1(100%) 1(100%)  1(100%)
Mr. Cui Liguo EFELE 4(100%)  2(100%) 1(100%) 1100%)  1(100%)
Mr. Zhang Lei REXE 4(100%) 2(100%) 1(100%) 1(100%)  1(100%)
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In accordance with the Group’s development strategy, the Group
has established a risk management system covering all the business
segments to monitor, assess and manage various risks in the Group'’s
business activities.

The risk management system of the Group is established in line with
the global standard including the management of each business unit,
the risk management function of the Group and the internal audit
function.

The Board has identified the top risks of the Group and determined
how much risk the Board is willing to take to achieve the Group's
strategic objectives. The Group has also prepared a Risk Management
Policy based on the above risk and conduct regular review of
operational and financial risks as reported by each business unit. Each
business unit is required to identify risks on a day-to-day basis, to
report any major risk to the Group.

Based on the risk profile of each business unit, and take into account
the management control and corporate oversight at Group’s level,
the Audit Committee and Internal Audit would map out a risk-based
internal audit plan each year.

The Board establishes or renews financial and credit facilities and
undertakes financial and credit transactions in accordance with the
financial policy of the Group.

FINANCIAL RISK

(1) Interest rate risk
The Group’s working capital and fixed assets investment,
apart from internal funds, rely on bank financing and issue of
convertible bonds. All convertible bonds were fully redeemed by
2013. The Group currently does not have any bank borrowing.
The fluctuation of lending interest rates has no effect to the
Group and the Group does not have any risk in this area.

(2) Currency risk
The Group’s currencies are mainly denominated in Hong Kong
dollar (“HKD"), Renminbi (“RMB”), Mongolian Tugrigs (“MT")
and United States dollar (“USD").
statements of the Group are presented in HKD. However, the

The consolidated financial

income of the Group is mainly in USD, therefore, the functional
currency of the Group is set in USD. The Group has to assess
the fluctuations of the exchange rates of USD against HKD, RMB
and MT.
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(A) USD Vs HKD

HKD has a linked exchange rate system with USD. The
exchange rate has been kept for many years. Therefore
the risk in this area is relatively small. However, the Group
needs to consider the effect if the system is removed.
Nevertheless, the Group's income and payment to foreign
suppliers are in USD which can compensate the exchange
risk should the system is removed.

(B) USD Vs RMB

The Group has established an office in Beijing, its
expenses are paid in RMB. In 2016, the exchange rate
of RMB dropped about 5.6% against USD. The annual
budget of Beijing office is approximately HK$4,000,000.
At 31st December, 2016 the Group had bank deposit of
approximately HK$1,889,000 denominated in RMB. The
exchange rate risk effect in RMB is insignificant to the
Group.

(C) USD Vs MT

The exchange rate of MT against USD dropped
approximately 20.2% in 2016. The inflation rate in
December 2016 in Mongolia was approximately 1.1%. The
bank deposit of Mongolian project is mainly in USD. The
Mongolia office settles its expenses in MT. Therefore, the
fluctuation of exchange rate of USD against MT did not
have any negative effect to the Group in 2016. The fixed
assets of Mongolian project are recorded in USD, so there
has been little effect in exchange rate. The amounts of
payables and receivables of Mongolian project which are
denominated in MT are relatively small, so as the exchange
rate risk in this area.

(3) Counterparty exchange rate risk

28

The buying and selling of natural uranium transactions of the
Group are denominated in USD, therefore the Group does
not have any risk in foreign currency exchange in business
transactions.
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OPERATIONAL RISK

(1)

(2)

Concentration risk

Currently, the income of the Group is only derived from the
natural uranium products trade. Of the projects in hand, the
production of Somina’s uranium mine has been suspended and
the mine is under maintenance care; the Mongolian uranium
project is still at the stage of application of mining license, no
products will be available in the near future.

The Group has taken initiatives to investigate in the nuclear

power related business. To cooperate with the business
development of its holding company, the Group will look
for opportunities to expand its business activities. The Group
will also participate in the natural uranium market events to
obtain latest market information and enlarge the suppliers and
customers list, avoiding the reliance on a small number of trading

partners.

Credit risk

The Group mainly confronted with credit risk resulting from
trade debtors that arising from sale of goods to customers.
The Group established credit policies and procedures to analyse
and identify the credit risks, set appropriate credit limits and
controls, monitor the risks on timely basis by means of reliable
management information systems. The Group performs regular
updates to enhance the credit policies in order to cope with the
changes in markets and practice of credit risk management.

Individual credit assessments are performed on customers to
determine the applicable credit limits and terms. Regular review
on credit limits and terms are performed in order to ensure
those are comparable to the credit standing of customers and
the latest business environments.

(1

(2)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chairman and Non-executive Director

Mr. Du Yunbin, aged 52, joined the Department of Mining and
Metallurgy of China National Nuclear Corporation (“CNNC”), the
ultimately holding company of the Company, as engineer in 1986 and
has substantial experience in geology and company management. Mr.
Du had served as senior engineer, deputy director of the planning
division, deputy chief engineer and deputy general manager of China
Nuclear Uranium Corporation (F#z&RiMEBREMTAF]) ("CNUC");
deputy general manager of China Uranium Corporation Limited (7
HEAZE I EARAT) ("CUC); and executive deputy director
of CNNC Department of Geology & Mining (7 B B # & ) $h 2 A
R A A])("CNGM”). Mr. Du currently is the director of CNGM, the
director of China Nuclear Geology (FEI#Z T¥ & F) (“"CNG"), the
general manager of CNUC, and the general manager of CUC. He is
also a director of Société des Mines d'Azelik S.A. (“Somina”). CNUC,
CUC, CNG are subsidiaries of CNNC. Mr. Du graduated from Nanjing
University with a bachelor degree in Hydrogeology and Water Resource
Engineering in 1986. He was qualified as a senior research engineer.

Executive Director

Ms. Wang Ying, aged 44, joined CNNC in 2010 and has substantial
experience in finance, management in economy and strategic planning.
Before joining CNNC, Ms. Wang had served the Forecast Department
of Economic and Information Center of Beijing Planning Commission
(At R Wt Z &K 5 B 078 81 28) as Deputy Director, Hong Yuan
Security Ltd. (RIRBEHRMDERAF]) as Chief Macro-economy
Analyst and Assistant to President, and worked in Research Center
of City Development and Environment of Chinese Academy of Social
Sciences (B4t & B 2B T 3% B EHIR BT 3R 0. Ms. Wang had
served the planning department of China Nuclear Energy Technical
Co. Ltd. (FF#ZEEIR B B R 2 7)) (jointly owned by China Nuclear
Engineering Group Corporation (1 EI4Z T3 3% % E A F]) » Tsinghua
University (B # AZ) and China General Nuclear Power Group (FR &
%% @) as Manager and Assistant to President. During 2007 to 2010,
Ms. Wang was seconded to China Atomic Energy Authority (BB Ryt
T Z Z# —7)) and National Energy Administration (BXEERBE N
A]). Ms. Wang had also served the Operating and Planning Department
of CNNC (FFEI#Z T2 5B F)# &8 E30) as Director and was the
Secretary of China Nuclear Exploration and Design Association (7
BT EHREHE). She is also a director of Somina. Ms. Wang
graduated from Beijing Agricultural University with a bachelor degree
in Agricultural Planning and Statistic in 1994. She obtained a doctor
degree in Economic Management from China Agricultural University
in 1999. She also obtained a post doctorate degree in Economy from
Peking University in 2003. She was qualified as a senior economist.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Executive Director (continved)

Mr. Gao Shangxiong, aged 51, was appointed as the vice general
manager of the Company with effect from 1st July, 2015 and is in
charge of the project development and investment of the Company.
Mr. Gao joined the division of safety and environment protection
of CNUC in 1994. Before Mr. Gao joined the Company as senior
manager in the project development and investment division in 2012,
he had been manager of CNUC and CUC. Mr. Gao has obtained a
bachelor degree and a master degree in mining engineering from
Baotou Iron and Steel Institute and Beijing Science and Technology
University respectively. Mr. Gao is also a non-executive director of
Langer Heinrich Uranium (Proprietary) Limited, an uranium resources
company 25% interest of which is held by CNNC Overseas Uranium
Holding Limited, the immediate holding company of the Company.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Xu Shouyi, aged 59, had served as a director of the audit
department of China Nuclear Energy Industry Corporation (“CNEIC")
and currently is the general manager of Yenaut Industrial Co., Ltd.
("Yenaut”). Both CNEIC and Yenaut are subsidiaries of CNNC. Mr. Xu
has experience in financial audit. Mr. Xu joined CNEIC in 1990 and had
served as deputy director of the audit department of CNEIC. Before
joining CNEIC, Mr. Xu had served as finance manager of it REEH S
BHERAMRAF]. Mr. Xu graduated from Beijing Open University and
is qualified as a senior accountant.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry, aged 69, currently serves as an
Executive Director & Deputy Chairman of Worldsec Limited, a company
listed on the London Stock Exchange. Mr. Cheong also serves as an
independent non-executive director of Cheung Kong Property Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1113), Hutchison Telecommunications Hong Kong
Holdings Limited (stock code: 215), New World Department Store
China Limited (stock code: 825), Greenland Hong Kong Holdings
Limited (stock code: 337), Cheung Kong Infrastructure Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1038), TOM Group Limited (stock code: 2383),
Skyworth Digital 751), all
companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He is

Holdings Limited (stock code: being
also an independent director of BTS Group Holdings Public Company
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand. Mr.
Cheong was an independent non-executive director of each of CK
Hutchison Holdings Limited (“CK Hutchison”) (stock code: 1), Cheung
Hong (Holdings) Limited (previous stock code: 1), the listing status on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited of which was replaced by
CK Hutchison on 18th March, 2015, and Kirin Group Holdings Limited
(formerly known as “Creative Energy Solutions Holdings Limited”)
(stock code: 8109). Mr. Cheong was also previously a member of
each of the Securities and Futures Appeals Tribunal and the Advisory
Committee of the Securities and Futures Commission. Mr. Cheong has
over 40 years of experience in securities industry. Mr. Cheong holds
a Bachelor of Science (Mathematics) degree from Chelsea College,
University of London and a Master of Science (Operational Research
and Management) degree from Imperial College, University of London.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Director (ontinved)

Mr. Cui Liguo, aged 47, is currently a partner of Guantao Law Firm,
a law firm in Beijing, PRC. He has been practicing law since 1993.
Mr. Cui founded Guantao Law Firm in 1994. He has over 20 years of
experience in legal sector. Mr. Cui is also an independent non-executive
director of APT Satellite Holdings Ltd. (stock code: 01045), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, an independent
director of China National Software & Service Co., Ltd. (F B &4 &
B AT BR 7% B% 17 B R A 7]) (stock code: 600536), a company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange. He is also a member of the Finance &
Securities Committee of All China Lawyers Association; a vice general
secretary of the Chamber of Financial Street; and the legal counselor
in the internal control group of securities issuing of Guodu Securities
Co., Ltd., Bohai Securities Co., Ltd. And China Investment Securities
Co., Ltd. Mr. Cui was an independent director of UBS SDIC Fund
Management Co., Ltd. (Bl HmIBEESEEBRAF), SDIC Xinji
Energy Co., Ltd. (EI#& ¥ &8 IRR DB R AF]) (stock code: 6019189),
a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and Beijing Navinfo
Co., Ltd. (dt 4 E# BB DB R AF]) (stock code: 002405),
and SUFA Technology Industry Co., Ltd., CNNC (i & B &l 5 B 2%
% {7 BR A 7)) (stock code: 000777), both companies listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Cui graduated from the China University
of Political Science and Law with a bachelor degree in laws in 1991.
He also holds a master degree in laws from the same university.

Mr. Zhang Lei, aged 47, currently serves as assistant of general
manager of Beijing Zhongguancun Dajie Securities sales department
of China Great Wall Securities Co., Ltd. (R EHFKRMHER Q)
a company Mr. Zhang joined since 1994. Mr. Zhang has over 20
years of experience in the securities industry. Mr. Zhang graduated
from Renmin University of China in 1996, major in commercial
and economic management. Mr. Zhang holds the qualification of
settlement practitioner granted by Beijing Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Philip Sau Yan, aged 58, is the Company Secretary and
Financial Controller of the Company. Mr. Li joined the Company in
November 2008. He had over 30 years of experience in auditing,
accounting and financial management. Mr. Li is an associate member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Li is a graduate of Imperial College of the University
of London and holds a Bachelor of Science degree.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31st December, 2016 (the
“Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities
of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, an associate and a joint
operation are set out in notes 32, 15 and 16 to the consolidated
financial statements. The market and business review are set out in
the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page
46.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
Year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the Year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital are set out in
note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31st December, 2016, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to approximately HK$474,938,000.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of
this report were:

Chairman and non-executive director
Mr. Du Yunbin

Executive directors
Ms. Wang Ying
Mr. Gao Shangxiong (appointed with effect from 1st June, 2016)

Non-executive director
Mr. Xu Shouyi

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry

Mr. Cui Liguo

Mr. Zhang Lei
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In accordance with Article 95 and Article 112 of the Articles of
Association of the Company, Mr. Gao Shangxiong, Mr. Xu Shouyi and
Mr. Zhang Lei will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

All independent non-executive directors had entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years commencing 12th
November, 2014. Ms. Wang Ying has renewed the service contract
with the Company for another term of three years commencing 1st
April, 2016. Mr. Gao Shangxiong has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of 3 years commencing 1st June, 2016.
The abovementioned service contracts shall continue thereafter until
terminated by either party giving to the other party not less than three
months prior written notice.

The term of office of each of the non-executive directors is the
period from his appointment to the time of retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31st December, 2016, none of the directors nor their associates had
any shares or underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the "SFO"), or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies.

SHARE OPTIONS

The share option scheme adopted on 11th December, 2002 (“2002
11th
December, 2012. A new share option scheme was adopted by the
Company on 3rd June, 2013 (“2013 Share Option Scheme”) and
its particulars are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial

Share Option Scheme”) was expired and terminated on

statements. No share option had been granted under the 2002 Share
Option Scheme and 2013 Share Option Scheme since their adoption.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed under the section headed “SHARE OPTIONS”
above, at no time during the Year was the Company or any of its
holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the Year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31st December, 2016, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
shows that the following shareholders had notified the Company of
relevant interests and short positions in the issued share capital of the
Company.

Long positions
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company

BARGRBEFZLH

REXERE]-SHEREEIN  ARFH
HEMER QR WEBARSKFRAZRMNER
AP AREE E N AE fa] By A AR AT SZAE ] R B
BUEARRREF A B ARNRB AT E A
AEANBEZ RO NESMERE M -

EENEXEHHER

BEAARFHEEFAZBRRR - HERQF
SRBEMEARTLEARBDEZTEE XL
MEEAEABDZIERGORFRRIA
FERAEAEMDABTR -

FERE
RZE—RNE+_A=Z+—H8 ' AQARE
BAERBEKRPIFEBEFEZETEREE
RERER  UTREEANE AN ERT
ERETRATHEEREAEZIRAE

38
AR AR EEEH0.017T.2 B# KR

Percentage of
Number of the issued share
issued ordinary  capital of the

Name of shareholder Capacity shares held Company
FiFERT HAQTEHT

% R & 78 5 & LiERHAE BRAETSLL

CNNC Overseas Uranium Holding Limited Corporate interest 326,372,273 66.72%

("CNNC Overseas”) (Note)

RN IR BR A F (TR &858 ) (Kt 5) NAEE =

China Uranium Corporation Limited (“CUC") (Note) Corporate interest 326,372,273 66.72%

B B A% SN o R BR A A (TR A 8 1) (B 31) NEIE R

China National Nuclear Corporation (“CNNC") (Note) Corporate interest 326,372,273 66.72%

FEZIEEERR(FZER])HE)

Ak

Note:  CNNC Overseas is the immediate holding company of the Company, which is wholly owned
by CUC, whereas CUC is wholly owned by CNNC.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified

of any other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share
capital of the Company as at 31st December, 2016.
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PURCHASE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SHARES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Framework Agreement with CNNC into which was entered by
the Company on 23rd April, 2013 expired on 31st December, 2015.
The Framework Agreement was not renewed. The related party
transactions are disclosed in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
of the independent non-executive directors are independent.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS,
CUSTOMERS, EMPLOYEES AND OTHER
STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its suppliers, customers, employees and other
stakeholders to meet the Group’s immediate and long-term goals.
Information about major customers is disclosed in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Group’s purchases were made
from a number of suppliers. The Group intends to seek and negotiate
with major uranium product traders in the market with a view to
expand its supplier and customer base. So far as the directors are
aware, at no time during the Year have the directors, their close
associates or any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge
of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
had any interest in the major suppliers and customers of the Group.

The Company creates a framework for motivating staff and an formal
communication channel in order to maintain healthy relationships with
its employees and other stakeholders.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are recommended
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.
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The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
directors and eligible employees, details of which are set out in note
25 to the consolidated financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. The Group is
engaged in uranium resources business and one of its main objectives
is to become an environment friendly corporation. Minimizing in
consumption of resources and adopt of environmental best practices
across the Group’s businesses are the commitment of the Group
to conserve and improve the environment. The Group shall make
every endeavour to comply with laws and regulations regarding
environmental protection and adopt effective measures to achieve
efficient use of resources, energy saving and waste reduction.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to complying with the requirements under
the Companies Law (Revised) under the laws of Cayman lIslands, the
Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance and the SFO under the laws
of Hong Kong. The subsidiaries in Mongolia are also committed to
complying with the requirements under the Law of Mongolia.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association of the Company, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association of the Company provide that every director
is entitled to be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the
Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office
or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has taken out and
maintained directors’ liability insurance throughout the Year, which
provides appropriate cover for the Directors and directors of the
subsidiaries of the Company.
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AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-
appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Du Yunbin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20th March, 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BY % BE RS

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CNNC INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CNNC
International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 46 to 103, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31st
December, 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31st December, 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report contines
BYZBEARE

Impairment assessment of exploration and evaluation
assets

BRRFEEEZBEFG

We identified the impairment assessment of exploration
and evaluation assets as a key audit matter due to the
significance of the balance to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, combined with the significant
judgments by management in performing the impairment
assessment of the assets.

BB SR EFEEEZREFGRBRETEE
MREBEESERGAV B RERBEAN  MLEEE
ETHEEREFENERHE -

As at 31st December, 2016, the Group’s exploration and
evaluation assets in relation to uranium mining in Mongolia
(“Mongolian uranium resources project”) amounted to
HK$207,918,000 and represented 26% of the Group’s total
assets.

R-E—XRNE+-_A=+—H0  SBSEEEHFEHEFE
BEHEB(ZGHERBEDZHERFHEERSBE
207,918,0007C ' £ EEBBEE 226% °

Under HKFRSs, exploration and evaluation assets shall be
assessed for impairment when facts and circumstances
suggest that the carrying amount of exploration and
evaluation assets may exceed its recoverable amount.

REEEHBREEL HERFHEAEGNEFER
BREPEAETEERBTRELES - AERAE
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BB NI HAREFEHETRE

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of
exploration and evaluation assets included:

RHERFEEEZRENG  RAMATHERES
&

o Discussing with management the progress of
the Mongolian uranium resources project and
examining the minutes, correspondences and
other supporting documents in relation to the
Group’s negotiation and communication with the
government officials of Mongolian authorities;
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o Obtaining legal advice from an external legal
counsel on status of the Group’s application for
the mining licenses, any change in regulatory
requirements in Mongolia that would adversely
affect the application of the mining licenses and
the validity of the Group’s exploration licenses;

e HR BEEEAFHRMAUENEER THeY
ZARAAUENEBEAEINEENRE AN ER
ZEFUR BEREWRFAEZE KRR
BEAREBERMNERER

o Understanding the Group’s impairment assessment

process, including the valuation techniques adopted
and the key assumptions and inputs used; and
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Independent Auditor’s Report contines
BYZBEARE

Impairment assessment of exploration and evaluation
assets

BRRFEEEZBEFG

As disclosed in Notes 4 and 14, the timing of obtaining the
mining licenses is uncertain and if the application of the
mining licenses is not approved by Mongolia Government,
the Group might incur a significant impairment loss
on the exploration and evaluation assets. As such, the
management performed an impairment assessment of the
exploration and evaluation assets. The recoverable amount
is estimated using fair value less costs of disposal which
requires significant degree of judgment by management
in selecting the valuation techniques and applying key
assumptions and inputs to the impairment assessment
model, taking into account the recent negotiation and
consensus with the Mongolian authorities, regulatory
requirements in Mongolia and the arrangement for the
Group’s mining licenses. The management considers that
no impairment is required in respect of the exploration and
evaluation assets as at 31st December, 2016.

AN EEAK MY AR R AL BB FRRAFAEZHEKR
EBEMEBEFRARFASAERGRAME B BEX
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OTHER INFORMATION

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMMEF NI HAREFSHETRE

Engaging our internal valuation expert to assess
the valuation by reference to a recent comparable
transaction relating to disposal of exploration and
evaluation assets in the market and applying certain
adjustment factors to compare the result with the
carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation
assets as at 31st December, 2016.

BREMABFEERE RS E TP NS LA
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Hipis 8

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other SBARAREZEHHMEEASE - HMEEES
information. The other information comprises the information included #FF|EH R FEFRANEE @ B BRIELZES M
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial ${E XFHRFIOZ SRS

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover FHFIHZEMEHENE R I T H = H b
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance =8 @ HRFIM T E L Z H(E BB K TEATE

conclusion thereon.

42  CNNC International Limited | 2016 Annual Report

AHEFGEm



Independent Auditor’s Report contines
BYZBEARE

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group'’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report contined

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional

judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

44

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report contined

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Lam Chi Hong.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
20th March, 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
GEREREMZERER

For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HZE-_ZT—"EF+ A=+ —HILFE

For the year ended
31st December,

BE+-A=+—-HLEE

2016 2015
—E—-RE —E-0F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B = BRI BT T
Revenue WA 5 189,429 57,755
Cost of sales RPN (204,537) (56,170)
Gross (loss) profit £ (#8) F (15,108) 1,585
Other income, gains and losses Ha A - Wz kB E 7 3,097 4,792
Selling and distribution expenses HER D HRAX (546) —
Administrative expenses TERX (15,635) (18,363)
Impairment loss on amount JiE W Bt 8 A Al R IR 2
due from an associate B & B — (72,898)
Share of loss of an associate FEAEEE A2 B E — (135,715)
Loss before taxation B i A BT 18 9 (28,192) (220,599)
Taxation g 10 — —
Loss for the year FANEE (28,192) (220,599)
Other comprehensive income HiozZmilk A
(expense) (FX)
Item that will not be reclassified T EEN FIEE B
to profit or loss ZIHE
Exchange differences arising REREINEBEEZ
on translation to presentation currency  JE & = %8 190 (112)
Total comprehensive expense for the year AA & A A E1EFE A
attributable to owners of the Company 2 H A X 458 (28,002) (220,711)
Loss per share BREE
— Basic — &R 12 (HK5.8 cents)  (HK45.1 cents)

(& Hs.84ll)

(75 #4511
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mABBEMRRE

At 31st December, 2016 R=-—Z—~NE+=-A=+—H

As at 31st December,

R+-—A=+—H
2016 2015
—E—-RE —T—HEF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
B BB BT T
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- BEREE 13 17,781 20,533
Exploration and evaluation assets WEEFHEE 14 207,918 205,786
Interest in an associate REGE A A 2w 15 — —
225,699 226,319
Current assets mENEE
Inventories T8 17 108,500 29,158
Trade and other receivables and FE U B 5 BR 5k K E b &
prepayments W 5% I8 LA 2 B 4+ 518 18 172,929 4,461
Bank balances and cash SRITHE S MR & 19 285,020 348,778
566,449 382,397
Current liabilities mEERE
Trade and other payables and FE T B 5 BR 3k & H th g
accruals 5 5K IB A B 8 5T R K 20 226,175 16,281
Amount due to intermediate holding  J& < /2 /) #58 i% 2 &
company A 21 1,801 1,596
Amount due to ultimate holding FE A B A AR A A
company KIE 21 2,407 1,473
Amounts due ANNCIRSE il NG]
to fellow subsidiaries A 21 522 121
Income tax payable e PR 19,360 19,360
250,265 38,831
Net current assets REEEFHE 316,184 343,566
Net assets BEEFE 541,883 569,885
Capital and reserves B & R {1
Share capital fig 7 23 4,892 4,892
Reserves fi& &8 536,991 564,993
Equity attributable to owners of HAAX T #HEHAREE
the Company B 541,883 569,885

The consolidated financial statements on pages 46 to 103 were (F46E103EZHEAMBHRERCN_FT—t
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of directors on 20th HF=A-THAKHEZHILERFEEL -

March, 2017 and are signed on its behalf by: YAHTIEERERSE:
Du Yunbin Wang Ying
HE R EFH
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
BE

B M |\




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GEEXERR

For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HEZE T —AF+ A=+ —HILFE

Non-
Share Share Capital distributable Merger Translation Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
BRE BHERE AFRE FTUIREE SHiREE ELRE RitiBE &
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BETR BETT BETRT BT T BT T BT T
(Note 23) (Note 24) (Note 24) (Note 24)
(Bf£23) (Bf=E24) (FfwE24) (Bt sE24)
At 1st January, 2015 RZT—HF—F—H 4,892 868,805 80,827 16,584 127 8,411 (189,050) 790,596
Loss for the year FREE — — — — — — (220,599) (220,599)
Exchange differences arising on # # AT 4£ 2
translation [E 5 Z 5 — — — — — (112) — (112)
Total comprehensive expense FRNTEMX
for the year wmE = = = — — (112) (220,599) (220,711)
At 31st December, 2015 RZT—HF
+=ZA=+-—8 4,892 868,805 80,827 16,584 127 8,299 (409,649) 569,885
Loss for the year FREE — — — — — — (28,192) (28,192)
Exchange differences arising on # # AT £ 2
translation % =R — — — — — 190 — 190
Total comprehensive income FR2EBAFIL)
(expense) for the year wE — — — — — 190 (28,192) (28,002)
At 31st December, 2016 RZE—RF
+=ZA=+-—8 4,892 868,805 80,827 16,584 127 8,489 (437,841) 541,883

Annual Repo




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GEREREBR

For the year ended 31st December, 2016 B EZE =T —AF+=-A=+—HIEFE

2016 2015
—EB—RE —ZE—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETT T T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXRK
Loss before taxation BRI 1B (28,192) (220,599)
Adjustments for: FEEER
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment % BMERREITE 2,578 2,589
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, HEWE BRERHK
plant and equipment 2 BB () 430 (6)
Interest income ) B U A (2,214) (3,898)
Allowance for inventories FEEE — 1,109
Impairment loss on amount due from an JE W B i AR 5RIE 2
associate VEREN SR — 72,898
Share of loss of an associate FEAEEE ARl 2 & B — 135,715
Operating cash flows before movements in LEESEBR 2
working capital REFHERE (27,398) (12,192)
(Increase) decrease in inventories F&Em) R (79,342) 55,061
(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables [& U & 5 B 7k N H 4th & U
and prepayments FRIE DA & T8 5018
(3 0 Rk (168,465) 99,047
Increase in trade and other payables and accruals J& < & 5 BE 7k &2 £t & <
TR IR LA Ko JE &R SRR A0 209,881 1,603
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM OPERATING (AE)REELEED 2
ACTIVITIES b (65,324) 143,519
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REES
Interest received 2 F B 2,214 1,844
Proceeds from disposal of property, LHEME BMEREKHZ
plant and equipment Fr 15 53R 87 77
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEVME BELE® (327) (204)
Additions of exploration and evaluation assets R E 8 FE KT HE E (1,950) (2,433)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING ke (RE)RETBHZEE
ACTIVITIES R 24 (716)




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows contineq
RERERERS

For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HZE-_ZT—"EF+ A=+ —HILFE

2016 2015
—E—RHF —T—HEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
EETT T T
FINANCING ACTIVITIES A& 5B
Advance from (repayment to) intermediate holding 2K B ({8 &) & /7 #5 fi% A &
company Z B8R 205 (160)
Advances from (repayment to) fellow subsidiaries K8 (&%) R & X B R A
Z B 401 (647)
Advance from ultimate holding company RESKERRAR ZBK 934 1,382
Repayment to immediate holding company EERRERRARZBNK — (5,157)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) RE(RE)REERSZ
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REFHE 1,540 (4,582)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH ReEkREFEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ORL ) & o5 58 (63,760) 138,221
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BROUGHT EHBRERREEEY
FORWARD 348,778 210,579
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES #SNEE R &)~ 5/ & 2 (22)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RekB2EEMESE -
CARRIED FORWARD, represented by bank HIRITER LB AKX
balances and cash 285,020 348,778

Annual Report -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mE M RRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2016 B EZE =T —AF+=-A=+—HIEFE

GENERAL

CNNC International Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
as an exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman
Islands under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and its
shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company’s immediate holding company is CNNC Overseas
Uranium Holding Limited (“CNNC Overseas”), a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the Company’s intermediate
holding company and ultimate holding company is China
Uranium Corporation Limited and A B4z T % & @ 2 7] (China
National Nuclear Corporation “CNNC”), a state-owned entity in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), respectively.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” section of the annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is United States dollars
("US$"). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") for the convenience of the
shareholders, as the Company is listed in Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
exploration and trading of mineral properties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continues
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016 B EZE=_ZT - "F+ A=+ B ILFE

2.

52

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,
the following amendments to Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS(s)”) and Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS(s)”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA").

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial

Statements

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014

Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in

Joint Operations

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continveq
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BB |RRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2016 B EZE =T —AF+=-A=+—HIEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STAN DARDS (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative'

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised
Losses'

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions?

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture*

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts

HKFRS 15 with Customers?
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers?
HKFRS 16 Leases®

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2017.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2018.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2019.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continues
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016 B EZE=_ZT - "F+ A=+ B ILFE

54

B 5 88 % M 5o

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STAN DARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising
from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
“Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective. The core principle
of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise revenue to
depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers
in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for goods or services.
Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance

obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies
a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in relation
to the identification of performance obligations, principal versus
agent considerations, as well as licensing application guidance.

The directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 in the
future may result in more disclosures, however, the directors
do not anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 will have
a material impact on the timing and amounts of revenue
recognised in the respective reporting periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continues
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016 B EZE=_ZT - "F+ A=+ B ILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STAN DARDS (Continued)
HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting treatments
for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS
17 "Leases” and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis
of whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer.
Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed
for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be recognised
for all leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases
of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability
is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification of
cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease
payments as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands
for owned use and those classified as investment properties
while other operating lease payments are presented as operating
cash flows. Under the HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to
lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an interest
portion which will be presented as financing and operating cash
flows respectively.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an asset and
a related finance lease liability for finance lease arrangement and
prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands where the Group is
a lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential
changes in classification of these assets depending on whether
the Group presents right-of-use assets separately or within the
same line item at which the corresponding underlying assets
would be presented if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an
operating lease or a finance lease.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STAN DARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31st December, 2016, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$938,000 as disclosed
in note 28. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease under HKFRS
16, and hence the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless they
qualify for low value or short-term leases upon the application
of HKFRS 16. In addition, the application of new requirements
may result changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure
as indicated above. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the financial effect until the directors
complete a detailed review.

Except those mentioned above, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of the new and revised HKFRSs
may have no material impact on the results and the financial
position of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis at the end of each reporting period, as

explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange of goods and services.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHHE

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:
o has power over the investee;
o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Interest in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associate are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting, except when the investment, or a portion
thereof, is classified as held for sale, in which case it is or the
portion so classified is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5
“Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”.
The financial statements of associate used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies as
those of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate. When the Group’s share of losses
of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interest in an associate (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within
the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to
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of Assets” as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
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Interest in a joint operation

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the joint
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arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing HEZEHEERBEAOMBES —BAL
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about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interest in a joint operation (continued)

When a group entity undertakes its activities under joint
operation, the Group as a joint operator recognises in relation
to its interest in a joint operation:

o its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;

o its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred
jointly;

o its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising

from the joint operation;

o its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by
the joint operation; and

o its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred
jointly.

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses relating to its interest in a joint operation in accordance
with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of returns and
sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are
delivered and title has been passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s
net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services, are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost,
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are recognised at cost on
initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, exploration
and evaluation assets are stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

Exploration and evaluation assets include the cost of exploration
rights and the expenditure incurred in the search for natural
resources as well as the determination of the technical feasibility
and commercial viability of extracting those resources.

When the technical feasibility and commercial viability of
extracting natural resources become demonstrable, previously
recognised exploration and evaluation assets are reclassified as
either intangible assets or property, plant and equipment. These
assets are assessed for impairment before reclassification, and
any impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases, in
which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of
the lease at the inception of the lease.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, the entire lease is generally
classified as a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant
and equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At
the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in

a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expense items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during that period, in which case the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or
an associate that includes a foreign operation of which the
retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to retirement benefit schemes are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered services entitling them
to the contributions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the profit or
loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
an associate, and interest in a joint operation, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and

they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3.

BB R

Taxation (continvea) *EIE (#&)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates BELEHBEERAERBHNEZES
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability B BEHEENBER B ET= -
is settled or the asset realised, based on the tax rates (and tax WIRBEERZEREHRAE B M E E

laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.
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Financial instruments &I H
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the %Eﬁ’é?&é%ﬁﬁﬁﬁé%@?ﬁ%ﬁﬁiﬁ
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity BENBX 2T RIELRE T

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and

receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of

initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (continved)

Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Loans and receivables (including trade and other
receivables and bank balances) are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).

Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of the reporting period. Loans and receivables are
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence that,
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition, the estimated future cash flows have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or
o breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables (continued)

For certain categories of loans and receivables, such as trade
receivables, assets are assessed for impairment on a collective
basis even if they were assessed not to be impaired individually.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group's past experience of collecting payments
and observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

The amount of impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the loans and receivables is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against the allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (continved)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, (where appropriate), a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and
amounts due to intermediate holding company, ultimate holding
company and fellow subsidiaries are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain
and loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses

Tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (if any).

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to
the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Exploration and evaluation assets

The carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation assets
is reviewed annually and assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” whenever one of the
following events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable (the list is not
exhaustive):

3.

FEEBRw

BEEE

FHEEE

REBEHR AEBRHRERE
EZREME UEERSEERTH
EAMREBBTR - G E[LE
PR BYZEEZATYRESET N
fi 5T+ 48 T 8 7 OB S 1B 2 72 (o
A) -

A B £ B8 T E RUEH & AR AR B
REEZRAZESE - RHERE
B B RKRAEREGRARR
BRMSEUERRHEBEREERE
Rz FEZHRABBRERMIREALR
BEE RITERLHRARRASTE
ZEETTFIARE -

HWEEZKBEELBEMNAKRD S
BEAEREEEE  IIeK%BEE
EGRASELEMNKREEREH
AREEHE - RORREBERS &
55 70 BC R B &5 18 PAF0 R AE {7 79 2 1O BR
EEHER)  RRRBEMLSEEN
REHERUIIDEEEMEE - BE
FEHETSHREERERTFERY
ERA(HAE)  EREE(AIE
EIRTERZERE - DEZEEEN
MEEBEBAREMNEMEEL
Pl - BEBENBENEBERER -

HWREREBREEBR EBEZK@
ER AR ELETZEAAIRE S
AR ZEEENAISREZEER
BEFEREBRREISAEEZ
REE - B2 REBENIRERE
mAHER o

HRRFEEE

BRI EEEZ BAESFHIER
MR WRHRTIEHRER
2BREREELTHREEN R
BB G LR FICREE ZAE I
H IR (B 38 B (L 5 B B 8%)

FRBERERAR | —E-AEE®R 69



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continues

)

For the year ended 31st December, 2016 & == Z —

70

B 5 88 % M 5o

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment losses (continued)

Exploration and evaluation assets (continued)

o the period for which the Group has the right to explore
in the specific area has expired during the period or
will expire in the near future, and is not expected to be
renewed,;

o substantive expenditure on further exploration for and
evaluation of mineral resources in the specific area is
neither budgeted nor planned;

o exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources in the
specific area have not led to the discovery of commercially
viable quantities of mineral resources and the Group has
decided to discontinue such activities in the specific area;
or

indicate that,
development in the specific area is likely to proceed,

o sufficient data exist to although a
the carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation
asset is unlikely to be recovered in full from successful
development or by sale.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY AND JUDGEMENT

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from

these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY AND JUDGEMENT (continved)

The following are the key estimation and assumptions concerning
the future that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within the next
financial year and critical judgements that the directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Impairment assessment on exploration and
evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are assessed for impairment
when facts and circumstances suggest that the carrying amount
may exceed the recoverable amount. As detailed in note 14,
the Group owns a number of exploration licenses included
in exploration and evaluation assets with carrying values of
approximately HK$208 million in Mongolia for uranium mining
which are subjected to the Mongolian’s Law on Nuclear
Energy and Mongolia’s Law on Implementing Procedures of
the Law on Nuclear Energy being effective on 15th August,
Under
the New Laws, the Mongolia Government has right to take

2009 (collectively referred to as the “New Laws"”).

ownership without payments of either not less than 51% of
the equity interest in the Group’s Mongolia subsidiaries if the
Mongolia Government’s funding was used to determine the
resource during exploration, or not less than 34% of the equity
interest in the Group’s Mongolia subsidiaries if the Mongolia
Government'’s funding was not used to determine the resource
during exploration. The Group commenced negotiating with the
relevant Mongolian authorities in respect of the implementation
of the New Laws from 2010 and consensus has been reached
between the Group and the relevant Mongolian authorities
that a joint venture will be established for holding the Group's
mining licenses, which are currently under application, with the
Mongolia holding 51% of the equity interest of the joint venture.
Upon the completion of establishment of the joint venture, the
Group’s mining licenses together with the carrying amount of
the Group's exploration and evaluation assets will be transferred
to the joint venture by way of a shareholder loan. However, the
timing of obtaining the mining licenses is uncertain and if the
application of the mining licenses is not approved due to the
New Laws, the Group might incur a significant impairment loss
on the exploration and evaluation assets.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY AND JUDGEMENT (continved)

The management of the Group determined the recoverable
amount of exploration and evaluation assets based on fair
value less costs of disposal which requires significant degree of
judgment by management in selecting the valuation techniques
and applying key assumptions and inputs to the impairment
assessment model, taking into account the recent negotiation
and consensus with the Mongolian authorities, regulatory
requirements in Mongolia and the arrangement for the Group's
mining licenses. The management considers that no impairment
on the carrying amount of exploration and evaluation assets is
considered necessary. Where the recoverable amount determined
from fair value less costs of disposal is less than expected by
the management, a material impairment loss may arise.

REVENUE

Revenue represents the trading income received or receivable for
uranium sold by the Group.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Group’s executive directors, being
the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on
the types of goods or services delivered or provided. The Group
currently organises its operations into two operating divisions,
which also represent the operating segments of the Group for
financial reporting purposes, namely trading of mineral property
and exploration and trading of mineral properties. They represent
two major lines of business engaged by the Group. The Group’s
operating and reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are as

follows:

o Trading of mineral — trading of uranium
property

o Exploration and trading — exploration and trading of

of mineral properties uranium

The following is an analysis for the Group’s revenue and
results from continuing operations by reportable and operating
segment:
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continved) 6. 5 EBRE Elow
For the year ended 31st December, 2016 BE-FT—7&F

+-A=+—HILEE

Exploration
Trading of and trading
mineral of mineral

property properties Consolidated
HE BHEREE

REME REME wE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EETRT EETRT EETRT
Segment revenue 7 EB A 189,429 — 189,429
Segment loss 2 EBEs 18 (15,227) (2,459) (17,686)
Unallocated other income RNH 2 EH A A
and gains e 2,214
Central administration costs AR R 1T A AR (12,720)
Loss before taxation B 7 A1 &S 18 (28,192)
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 BE_FT—I1F
+-A=+—HLEEE
Exploration
Trading of and trading
mineral of mineral
property properties  Consolidated
g HRREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
Segment revenue AN 57,755 — 57,755
Segment loss 7 EBET 18 (35,409) (139,737) (175,146)
Unallocated other income AN BC 2 EH A
and gains R = 3,950
Unallocated other expenses ROz HEMmAL (36,114)
Central administration costs R RATEOK AR (13,289)
Loss before taxation R B4 B &5 18 (220,599)
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same AR FE3FTM - AL D EB 2 FETIR R
as the Group's accounting policies described in note 3. Segment AEESTHERER - DHERES
loss represents the loss incurred by each segment without DEFTEERE - TREMBUWA
allocation of interest income, impairment loss on amount due FE U B AR FRIB 2R EEE kR
from an associate and central administration costs. This is the TR ADE « b ThBt#ETE IR B
measure reported to the chief operating decision maker for ERFtE s BRIEMA EZEERE A
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment EWRITAEER o

performance.
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D EBE o)
DEHEERERE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continvea) 6.
Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities

by reportable and operating segment:

ARBEERAEHERREES
852 AT

2016 2015
—T-RE —T—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
ASSETS BE
Segment assets D EEE
— Trading of mineral property — RETEEYE 274,987 29,158
— Exploration and trading of — WERERKSE
mineral properties BEMHE 233,599 233,478
508,586 262,636
Unallocated assets ROBLEE 283,562 346,080
Consolidated assets HARBEE 792,148 608,716
LIABILITIES B{E
Segment liabilities HEEE
— Trading of mineral property — REBEYE 213,118 —
— Exploration and trading of — WERREE
mineral properties BEMHE 15,398 15,470
228,516 15,470
Unallocated liabilities AOBEE 21,749 23,361
Consolidated liabilities SoEBaE 250,265 38,831

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and MERSBRI|E DD BEERM

allocating resources: =

o Segment assets include property, plant and equipment, o DHEEAIERBEESRD FH
exploration and evaluation assets, interest in an associate, BEREEZYYE  BERSE - 8
inventories, trade and other receivables and bank balances ERTEEEE NEBENT 2
and cash which are directly attributable to the relevant F FEE EWZESEZNEM
reportable segment. RN RIRIT B RES -

o Segment liabilities include trade and other payables o DEEBEEIEEBERY I E

and accruals and amounts due to intermediate holding FE(E 2 P 5 BF 2 I E b e <t
B R R R A 2
BAR]  REERARRFATER

Wi B AR KA -

company, ultimate holding company and fellow subsidiaries
which are directly attributable to the relevant reportable

segment.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continved) 6. FTEWMEF
Other segment information Hitb5r Ip & #
2016
—EB—-RE
Exploration
Trading of and trading
mineral of mineral
property  properties Unallocated Total
TE BHEREE
REME REME x5 B st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT EETRT EETT EETR
Amounts included in the measure of & & % & 2 48 %
segment results DEEERFTTAZ
or segment assets: S8
Addition to non-current assets REFRBEE — 2,139 — 2,139
Depreciation of property, plant and #12% « B 5 & & &
equipment 29 & — (2,512) (66) (2,578)
2015
— a&E
Exploration
Trading of  and trading
mineral of mineral
property properties  Unallocated Total
BEDH* =% KRB #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T T T BETT BETT
Amounts included in the measure of & & 5 & 2 48 ¢
segment results DHBEERITAZ
or segment assets: k|
Addition to non-current assets ANEERBEE — 2,637 — 2,637
Depreciation of property, plant and %% * & & k& & 2
equipment il — (2,498) @1 (2,589)
Allowance for inventories FEREE (1,109) — — (1,109)
Impairment loss on amount due from J& g B 4 A F 5B 2
an associate R AE B R (36,784) — (36,114)  (72,898)
Share of loss of an associate JE(LEE L R R E R — (135,715) —  (135,715)
Interest income on amount due from & Y B & A & 518 2
an associate A B A 1,036 — 1,018 2,054
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continved) 6. 5 EBRE Flww
Geographical information WESHE
The Group’s revenue by geographical market (irrespective of the REEPHEMBE D 2 AEE R [E
origin of the goods) based on the location of the customers are M5 (T & AR JR ) 2 WA &F 3t 20
detailed below: T~
Revenue
[ PN
2016 2015
—E—-RE —E-AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
Overseas isEe| 189,429 —
Hong Kong BB — 57,755
189,429 57,755
The Group’s operation is principally located in the Mongolia AREFBTITEESFTH(TELERR) o
(country of domicile). Information about the Group’s non-current AREBIZHEIERBEEZHEE HZ
assets by geographical location of the assets is detailed below: BEENSIWNOT

Non-current assets

ERENEE
2016 2015
—T—RE —T—hfF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BT T
Mongolia (country of domicile) SH(ZEELERBR) 225,531 226,222
Hong Kong BB 168 97

225,699 226,319
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (ontinved) 6. FEEF
Information about major customers FREEEREH
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing BEAEEAKAI0%KE T FERIE
over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are as follows: HEFHWANT :
2016 2015
—E—RHF —E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI ST T
Customer A BEPA 105,530 N/A 7 & A
Customer B =FB 60,957 N/A 73 A
Customer C EFC 22,942 N/A 3 A
Customer D EFPD N/A &R 57,755

i The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue of the

! HENKALSEBBAEEBKAZI0% °

Group.

OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 7. Hitblr A Wizm R E51E
2016 2015
) At —ZT—HF
HK$000 HK$'000
EETR BT T

Included in other income, gains and losses A - Has & EE
are the following: ERBENAT:

Interest income A B WA 2,214 3,898
Net exchange gain E X i F 58 1,292 77
Commission income Bakl A — 52
Compensation from a litigation FABBZEE — 735
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors and

8. EERESME

ENHENTREERITHRARZ M

the chief executive were as follows: /(N
Retirement
Directors’ Salaries and benefit scheme Discretionary
fee allowances contributions bonus Total
BAREH
EEHE FaREM BH &I BRI st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
BT BT BT T BETT BETT
For the year ended 31st December, 2016 BE-T-/"&£+=A
=+—HiLEEE
Executive directors: HITEE:
Ms. Wang Ying (Note (i) and (iii)) F 3 2+ (B 3 () K (Gii)) 150 480 — 284 914
Mr. Gao Shangxiong (appointed on 1st June, BHEERERZT—REF
2016) (Note (ii) and (iii)) NA—BLE)
(B 5 (i) B Giii)) 87 235 — — 322
Non-executive directors: FHITES:
Mr. Du Yunbin (Note (i)) B 5t A (B FE3)) 200 — — — 200
Mr. Xu Shouyi BREHREE 150 — — — 150
Independent non-executive directors: BUFNTES:
Mr. Cheong Ying Chew, Henry RIHEE 200 — — — 200
Mr. Cui Liguo B B S 200 — — — 200
Mr. Zhang Lei RELE 150 — — — 150
1,137 715 — 284 2,136
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 BE-F-AE+=-A
=+—HiLEEE
Executive director: HITES:
Ms. Wang Ying (Note (i) and (iii)) T B 2 £ (M 3 G) R Giii) 150 480 24 290 944
Non-executive directors: FEHITESE:
Mr. Du Yunbin (appointed on 1st June, 2015)  HEHEE(R=F—HF
(Note (i) NA—B EE) (M) 200 _ _ _ 200
Mr. Cai Xifu (resigned on 30th April, 2015) BHERER-T—1F
mA=+HEE) = = — — —
Mr. Xu Shouyi RFRELE 150 — _ _ 150
Independent non-executive directors: BIUERTES
Mr. Cheong Ying Chew, Henry iR BB LA 200 _ _ _ 200
Mr. Cui Liguo B A B A 200 — _ _ 200
Mr. Zhang Lei REXAE 150 — _ _ 150
1,050 480 24 290 1,844

Ms. Wang Ying (2015: Ms. Wang Ying) is also the Chief Executive
of the Company and her emoluments disclosed above include
those for services rendered by her as the Chief Executive.

FRZE(CT—RF FELD)TA

ARBITHAEE - B LT

BR<

B & B4R E AR R 1T AR E AT B IR 75
ZHE -
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8.

DIRECTORS" AND EMPLOYEES’ 8.
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

(i) The directors’ fee for Mr. Du Yunbin and Ms. Wang Ying in 2016 and 2015 are paid
or payable to CNNC Overseas by the Company.

(ii) The director’s fee for Mr. Gao Shangxiong in 2016 was paid or payable to CNNC
Overseas by the Company.

(iii) The executive directors’ emoluments shown above for Ms. Wang Ying and Mr. Gao
Shangxiong were mainly for their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company and the Group.

(iv) The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their services
as directors of the Company or its subsidiaries.

(v) The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for
their services as directors of the Company.

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, two individuals (2015: one individual) were directors of
the Company whose emoluments are included in the disclosure
set out above. The emoluments of the remaining three (2015:
four) individuals were as follows:

EEREEME
B

(i) HEBREEREFRLLIR-F-RNER=-F—
REZBERNEHMARAZMNRE T NF &
BN -

(i) BHEAER-B-—RFIEEFHUEAHELA
AT AP o

(iif) AR FERRIREHEEEZRITEEH
ENAMRBERARRARAEEER -

(iv) NERTEEMEETZRERAARIEMNE
AR ZEEZRY -

v) NEBUFRTEEHE I RERARRAZE
=R -

AEBZRAEREHEMA LS =%

—E-RF:-RALTRARAE
= REZMEFA LR 2 KE -
BI=R(CT—AF HORB)ALTZMH
FWR

2016 2015
—EB—-RE —ZT—HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETRT ST T
Salaries and other benefits Ko H Ath 48 1,874 2,747
Retirement benefit schemes contributions R OK AR A 5 & 45 5K 31 43
1,905 2,790
2016 2015
—¥-RE —T—hF
No. of No. of
employee employee
& 5 A& BB AH
Emoluments of the employees were within the 1& 8 Bl & /7 F T 5
following bands: #H R
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = % ##1,000,0007T 2 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 75 #1,000,001T 2
75 #1,500,000 7T 1 1

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the directors or the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the directors has waived

any emoluments during the year.

FR - AEBYEREIMNESFHOS
RRFMALIINEMNME  ERFH
EMAXKEESAMARAEER 2 RS
SBEREE BMEEITNFAREL
g -
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9. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 9. BRBiAIEE
2016 2015
—E—RE —T—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BT T
Loss before taxation has been arrived at B B Al B 1B S N BR
after charging (crediting): GTA) T &IE:
Directors’ remuneration (see note 8) ZE= < (R E8) 2,136 1,844
Other staff costs Hih B TR 4,406 4,960
Retirement benefit schemes contributions R OK AR A 5 84 3K
(see note 29) (R Bff 5£29) 57 73
Total staff costs BT A4 6,599 6,877
Less: Amount capitalised in exploration and & : B R EAE B IFE K
evaluation assets AEEELSE (931) (1,337)
5,668 5,540
Allowance for inventories (included in FEREGIAEE
cost of sales) X 7AX) — 1,109
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment %1% - BB KL & & 2
e 2,578 2,589
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BE N &R E
equipment (included in other income, Z e ()
gains and losses) (GTAEMU A - Yz
K E1E) 430 (6)
Auditors’ remuneration % A BN & 1,372 1,280
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense /&R X 2177 & K A& 204,537 55,061
Operating lease charges on land and buildings + X F 7 K&/ &
£ M 2,609 3,681
10. TAXATION 10. Hi 18
Under the Law of People’s Republic of China on Enterprise BIEFEARLMBCZERBRE ([
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of EREREDREEMGREEBE
the EIT Law, the tax rate for foreign owned enterprises is 25% Bl - BZEZENF—A—BRERRI
from 1st January, 2008 onwards. BHEBREFENNEL25% °
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated MEFEZEENSHIZ G RRD
assessable profit for both years. M IA16.5% 2 B KT H o

| 2016 Annual Report
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10. TAXATION (Continued) 10. mlﬁ (%)
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the HREEERBAMEFTEHNEERD
consolidated financial statements as the group entities incurred B RGN ERRITEELE
tax losses for both years. BRI o
The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss before ARFEERERGEER R EME2EK
taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and mRFITRMATEEERAT
other comprehensive income as follows:
2016 2015
—E—-RE —ZE—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
Loss before taxation K %X B /&5 18 (28,192) (220,599)
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% &% & F| 15 % %£16.5%
AEZHE (4,652) (36,399)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BERMBA 2T
purpose TE (404) (818)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax -~ 8] 1 % B 2 2 %t
purpose - 617 12,459
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERMIAEE 2
Mg E & 4,439 2,365
Tax effect of share of loss of an associate FEAEEE AAEE 2
SR — 22,393

RE E B IR

Taxation for the year

11. DIVIDENDS

No dividends were paid, declared or proposed during the current

1.

and prior years. The directors have determined that no dividend
will be paid in respect of the year ended 31st December, 2016.

iz B
RAFERBAFEARERN  E
SRS - EFERETEHE
BT RF+TA=+—HLEEEIK
RS -
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12. LOSS PER SHARE 12. BIREG 8
The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to the AR EBEANBEEREARAREEES
owners of the Company is based on the following data: BORBTIE®RAE:
2016 2015
—®-x&  -%-5f
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BET T
Loss for the year attributable to owners KA B AELEERN
of the Company &5 18 (28,192) (220,599)
2016 2015
—®-x%  —T @f
Number of ordinary shares for the purposes & E &% &8 2 & 8%
of loss per share 2B 489,168,308 489,168,308
2
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. W¥E BRERRE
Plant and
machinery
Leasehold Mining  and other  Furniture and Motor
improvements structure equipment fixtures vehicles Total
BER
HEME HEUR
%t WMESE HtRE HERKE RE st
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT BETrT BETT BETT BETT BBt
CosT &S
At 1st January, 2015 R-—Z-—R&—H—A — 4,848 46,546 4,434 2,718 58,546
Exchange realignment R ECES = 3) (27) ) M (33)
Additions NE — — 204 — — 204
Disposals & = = — = (480) (480)
At 31st December, 2015 R-Z-h&E+-A=1+—H — 4,845 46,723 4,432 2,237 58237
Exchange realignment XA E — 4 40 3 1 48
Additions RE 138 — 189 — — 327
Disposals & = — (1,994) (1,397) (747) (4,138)
At 31st December, 2016 RZE—A"E+=-A=1+—8 138 4,849 44,958 3,038 1,491 54,474
DEPRECIATION neE
At 1st January, 2015 R-—Z-—R&—H—A — 1,268 29,867 3,347 1,062 35544
Exchange realignment ERECES = M (16) ) M (20)
Provided for the year FREEE — 98 2,247 80 164 2,589
Eliminated on disposals i 6 I 3 8H = = — = (409) (409)
At 31st December, 2015 R-Z-h&+-A=1+—H — 1,365 32,098 3,425 816 37,704
Exchange realignment XA E — 2 27 2 1 32
Provided for the year FREEE 8 89 2,352 115 14 2,578
Eliminated on disposals o 6 I 1 8H — — (1,477) (1,397) (747) (3,621)
At 31st December, 2016 RZZE—A"E+=-A=1+—8 8 1,456 33,000 2,145 84 36,693
CARRYING VALUES AREE

At 31st December, 2016 RZZT—A"E+=A=+—H 130 3,393 11,958 893 1,407 17,781
RZZ—RF+=-A=+—H — 3,480 14,625 1,007 1,421 20,533

At 31st December, 2015
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13.

14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% -BERSEREB»
(Continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment are FatE - BERZEEE TR EM
depreciated over their estimated useful lives, after taking into STAIE A F R RS ET R A ERIERE
account of their estimated residual value, on a straight-line basis B NESEEATFERFEITE:
at the following rates per annum:
Leasehold improvements  Over the term of the leases or HEMEEE HEFHNSF (AR
5 years, whichever is the shorter BE AN
Mining structure 20 to 40 years & [ 45 1 20404
Plant and machinery and  6%-20% R E LR 6%-20%
other equipment R E A HE
Furniture and fixtures 18%-33% RBRREE 18%-33%
Motor vehicles 18%-25% "E 18%-25%
EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS 14. B)if R:FE B &E
HK$'000
BT T
COST DN
At 1st January, 2015 R=—ZFE—HF—HF—H 203,469
Additions NE 2,433
Exchange realignment PE 5 58 & (116)
At 31st December, 2015 R-ZE—RF+-A=+—H 205,786
Additions NE 1,950
Exchange realignment ME H, 8 B 182
At 31st December, 2016 R-ZBE-—RNFE+_A=+—H 207,918

The Group’s exploration and evaluation assets were mainly
arising from the acquisition of Western Prospector Group Ltd.
during the year ended 31st December, 2009.

On 15th August, 2009, the Mongolian’s Law on Nuclear Energy
and Mongolia’s Law on Implementing Procedures of the Law
on Nuclear Energy (collectively referred to as the “New Laws")
came into force. Under the New Laws, the Mongolia Government
has the right to take ownership without payment of either not
less than 51% of the equity interest in the Group’s Mongolian
subsidiaries if the Mongolia Government’s funding was used
to determine the resource during exploration, or not less than
34% of the equity interest in the Mongolian subsidiaries if the
Mongolia Government’s funding was not used to determine the
resource during exploration.

qﬂﬁﬁ“ﬁ‘ﬁgf“»

AEBZHMRERNGEEEETZHNE
E_ZTTANF+_A=Z+—HIEFEK
8% Western Prospector Group Ltd.T &
Koo

R-BEAFNA+TEAE

BRI RRE BB LD ERIZRF
HOE B (R RETHOA B D BB LR - 1R
BHORD  RHBRFEERE LR
PAZR 5 B 5% o B JB8 2 B AL #E 22 51% (fieh
RBEBRFIRXABRTE S ER
BR)ITPRREEMB LA REZ
34% (R BV RBREP I BB AR AH K
RESHBER) 2B MBAN

e
A °

ES=R: 0k
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14. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS

84

(Continued)

The directors of the Company commenced negotiating with the
relevant Mongolian authorities in respect of the implementation
of various provisions under the New Laws during the year ended
31st December, 2010. Based on management'’s discussions with
the relevant Mongolian authorities and the advice from its
Mongolian legal advisers, the Group will have the right to apply
for mining licenses to mine or extract the resources identified
in the relevant areas covered by the exploration licenses. As at
31st December, 2016, included in the exploration and evaluation
assets is an amount of approximately HK$207,918,000 (2015:
HK$205,786,000) of which the Group is currently in the progress
of applying for mining licenses to mine or extract the resources
identified in the relevant areas covered by these exploration
licenses. In the opinion of directors, there is no legal obstacle
for application of such mining licenses.

During the year ended 31st December, 2012, consensus has
been reached between the Company and the relevant Mongolian
authorities that a joint venture will be established for holding the
mining licenses, which are currently under application, with the
Mongolia Government holding 51% of the equity interest in the
joint venture. Upon the completion of establishment of the joint
venture, the Group’s mining licenses together with the carrying
amount of the Group’s exploration and evaluation assets will be
transferred to the joint venture by way of a shareholder loan. In
addition, the Company has drafted the shareholders’ agreement,
joint venture agreement and memorandum and association of
the joint venture and has commenced negotiation with the
detailed terms of these documents with the relevant Mongolian
authorities and a pre-mining cooperation agreement was signed
on 26th June, 2012 to kick off the pre-mining activities.

A notice was previously received in January 2014 from the relevant
Mongolian authorities which mentioned that the joint venture
would be expected to be established in 2014. However, the
establishment has been postponed due to changes in government
officials of relevant Mongolian authorities in 2014 and in June
2016. Further negotiations on the terms of the draft joint venture
agreement has been carried out with the new government officials
of relevant Mongolian authorities, and the finalisation of the joint
venture agreement is anticipated to be completed in 2017. The
Group's exploration and evaluation assets will then be transferred
to the joint venture by way of a shareholder loan upon the
completion of establishment of the joint venture.

CNNC International Limited | 2016 Annual Report

—RNETZA=ZT—BLEEE

14.

HEKREFEEE»

E_T-TET_A=+—HULFE
N ARAEFEHABEREERME
EED TZEEXERREH - RIB
ERBEABSRLIERZAWMEER
HERBRZER AEESAEER

E%F'aﬁ?%%fFT%  FEUAR SR AR B
PR T A RE BT 2 2 18 78 b [ 13 A a8

Zéﬁ/ﬁ © E/\\\_7 */\EJF—H :JF*
H AXEEBFAMRRIBEERS
5 4975 #207,918,000 T (—Z T — A F :
75 #205,786,0007T) < & E A 78 7
FTAIEE c REDAR SRSk AR E MR AT
AIBMEE 2B EANTHEE 2 &
R-BEERR HEXSZHARTAUR
BEERE L2 ER -

HEZZT——F+=-A=+—HLHF
ER ARAFIEBEHAZEERE R K
ERYEEDEEREE  UFALE
ERBZAETUE  MEaBFE
BEAELEREZ51% © TEHAK L
EEDER  RNEEZFKRTAEE
FEASEHERTGHEE 2 REES
DRERERTRAERESERE - It
SN RARIEERKRRHZ 6210
EEAREGELFABEERNAR

ER HEEBERIERMZEXHZ
ARG ERERN LR —F
NAZTARBETRER & 1E =
R ZIBERERGE -
AEBER-_ZE—HNFE—AZER
HEEERBEL AN BERREEE

EERBAHBEN-_T—WFKIL- R
m AERXAERCBNEER
E-NER_FE-RFNALRA -
AEEERTE %ﬁﬁﬁEEEL*
*ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%mﬁﬁ'ﬁ%m
TtHFERTKAE R EHE é%ﬁ
ERUE AEBWREFIHEEES
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14. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS 14. I IE RE K EE »

(Continued)

The Company has continued the negotiation with the relevant
Mongolian authorities and the directors are of the opinion
that the recent changes will not result in significant impact on
the consensus which has been reached previously. In addition,
the management performed an impairment assessment of the
exploration and evaluation assets, and the recoverable amount of
the exploration and evaluation assets is estimated using fair value
less costs of disposal taking into account the recent negotiation
and consensus with the Mongolian authorities, regulatory
requirements in Mongolia and the arrangement for the Group’s
mining licenses. The management considers that no impairment
is required in respect of the exploration and evaluation assets
as at 31st December, 2016.

ARFICHERERILERER
MEFRROR A KT H LA
ERCHBERERNTE - I &
BESHERIFHEEELET TREN
i MEFHERERFHEEEATRES
BREAAFERLERS  YEE
MRS EERZEHERAR b
FOEPIERK R AEERRFAIREZR
- BEEERANR_ZT—RF+_H
=t—B BREFHEELRIR
MENE -

15. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 15. REtE AT 2

2016 2015

—E—RE —T—HEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BB ST T

Cost of unlisted investment FELEMKE 2 KA 463,865 463,865
Share of post-acquisition losses and other FEAE W B 1% E5 18 R Hofth

comprehensive income 2AEKA (463,865) (463,865)

Interest in an associate N RN o v — —

During the year ended 31st December, 2010, the Group
acquired 37.2% equity interest in Société des Mines d'Azelik S.A.
(“Somina”) through the acquisition of a subsidiary known as
Ideal Mining Limited (“Ideal Mining”). At 31st December, 2016,
the Group's equity interest in Somina is pledged to a bank for
certain banking facilities granted to Somina.

mﬁ%ﬁ_ﬁ?

AEBREBEZE-_ZE—ZFF+_A=+
—RAEFEFAKRKE B2 RER
BEARAR(EEEEDZH B
7] » W B Société des Mines d'Azelik
S.A. ([Somina & @l]) 237.2% & A #&
#woRZE-—RF+A=+—RH &
& B R Somina A & 2 % 2N # 7 B 1K 7
T R 1T LAERAS 2 T Somina A A Z #R 1T

B
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REEATIZER »
R=B-AER-F-RE+=A=+
—B AEBEZHEZRRFBNOT:

15. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

Details of the Group’s associate as at 31st December, 2016 and
2015 are as follows:

15.

Country of Attributable
Name of registration and equity interest Principal
associate operation Paid-up registered capital held by the Group activity

AEREF#F
BEATZME HAMREBEZER CHEZREZX FEISRRIE EEEFR
Somina Republic of Niger African Financial Community 37.2% Mining
Franc 500,000,000

Somina A &) EB®@ 500,000,000 37.2% MRHEFAK

JEN £ B A F B8 OE BB

Somina AR Z BAIEE R E&R T o
AT BE R B E TR IR E B M|
ERLGE R NI R e e gl
RZER - NREEAMBRRGD
TEREEEGHERRAR -

The summarised financial information of Somina is set out
below. The summarised financial information below represents
amounts shown in the associate’s financial statements prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs. The associate is accounted for using
the equity method in these consolidated financial statements.

2016 2015
—E—-RE —E-AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BT T
Current assets mEE E 163,673 167,891
Non-current assets FERBEE 1,320,825 1,559,921
Current liabilities mEARE (3.092,303) (2,815,164)
Non-current liabilities ERBERE (530,929) (614,697)
Net liabilities e g=N (2,138,734) (1,702,049)
Revenue PN — _
Loss for the year FANEE (435,218) (828,522)
Other comprehensive (expense) income FAEMEE(FAX)
for the year A (1,437) 667
Total comprehensive expense for the year FRNEEHAS B (436,685) (827,855)
Unrecognised share of loss of an associate for 7 % # B4 QX 7] 2 518
the year 162,447 172,247
Cumulative unrecognised share of loss of an Z&t AR D #E & A F 2
associate & 15 334,694 172,247
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15. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (contines 15. RBE AT 2R«
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to A B S R B B N AR S B R R 3R
the carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised R HE QA 2 BREE S AR
in the consolidated financial statements: T~

2016 2015
—EB—RE —T—hHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BT T
Net liabilities FRE (2,138,734) (1,702,049)
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest 7~ & [ AT {5 % & #
T & ) 37.2% 37.2%
(795,609) (633,162)
Add: Cumulative unrecognised share of m:RE R EH =S R
loss of an associate Al Z Ei8 334,694 172,247
Premium on acquisition of interest REEE RE RS 2
in an associate W B 4 (B 460,915 460,915
Due to the continued operating losses suffered over the years, HRZERGFELEEE  HESH
unfavourable market conditions for the sale of uranium and MAFBETERBERTENEERED
insufficient cash flows for repayment of outstanding bank HRSR1TE X » Somina R R A R EH5 &
borrowings, Somina has run into serious going concern problem. KEBEE o Somna AR T —h%F
The production of Somina has been suspended since the first half FH¥FEFILEEE BB RY R RK
of 2015 and it is highly uncertain whether Somina will resume BEEFERETEEE -

operation in the foreseeable future.

16. JOINT OPERATION 16. EEXEH
The Group has a joint operation, XXEM LLC. The Group has a AEBE—HE EEEXXEM LLC ° &
50% share in the ownership of a power station in Mongolia. SEBEAESH BEERI50%ES
The power station is designed for the provision of power line e ZETEHERERLIEER AR
support to the Group and the Joint Arrangement Parties. The RN REEESE - AEEF
Group is entitled to 50% share of the revenue earned and bears BEG G & E BT BRI A Z250%
50% share of the joint operation’s expenses. REESEER 250% XK o
17. INVENTORIES 17. &
2016 2015
—¥-RE —ZET—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEEFT BT T
Uranium concentrates % B i 108,500 29,158

>
% |
U J i N
< - B
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18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 18. H fth FE W

B E 5 M IE &
R¥EfRIA

PREPAYMENTS X IH KL
2016 2015
—B—-RE —ZT—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
Trade receivables e E 5 HKIA 166,487 —
Other receivables H b & W R IE 3,810 3,712
Deposits paid BEfETE 110 382
Prepayments RN @] 2,522 367
172,929 4,461

The Group allows a credit period of 30 days to its trade
customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting
period:

AEBEGTHESEP0ENERED -
RBEERERREBEBZRAPRELEZT
ZRWEZRSAREDFTMOT

2016 2015

—E—REF —ZET—AF

HK$'000 HK$'000

ERETR BT T

0 to 30 days 0HZ=30H 166,487 —

Before accepting any new customer, the Group will understand
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines its credit
limits. Credit sales are made to customers with an appropriate
credit history. Credit limits attributed to customers are reviewed
regularly.

The directors of the Company consider that trade receivables
at the end of the reporting period which are neither past due
nor impaired are recoverable because the outstanding balance is
entirely settled subsequent to the end of the reporting period.

At 31st December, 2016, other receivables and deposits paid
that are denominated in Mongolian Tughrik (“MNT"), the
currency other than the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities, are HK$3,838,000 (2015: HK$3,741,000).

d | 2016 Annual Report

EEMMBELZA - AKEKTHERE
EEZEEERUEEHEAMRE -
AEERABRIFERTENTPIE
HEAHEE RTEFNEARERE
HEZ -

ARREERR  NRSHEERKYL
RBHI NI EBE 2 BRE SRR
RESZHHAERLEHRO N REN
RE&EE -

R-ZT—RNFE+-_A=+—8 ' UEH
BEREr(BRER)GEESEEE
e B AN B¥E) 5B 2 E fh FE U
RIERENE]E AB%3,838,0007T (=
T — R B #3,741,0007T) °
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19. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 19. RITERRIAL
Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates which RITHEBIEN F001EE157% (=&
range from 0.01% to 1.57% (2015: 0.01% to 1.06%) per —HF 0.01EE1.06E) 2 RITHIHF
annum. FIZEFE o
Bank balances that are denominated in currencies other than TXEHINAEBEBEEE 2K
functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out Aoz E¥E BB 2 I]RITA 4
below:
Canadian Australian
dollars Renminbi dollars
HKS$ (“CAD") MNT (“RMB") Euro ("AUD")
ot AR BT
s (Mo 3z 1) ERER TAR®ED Ex (®xl))
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BT T BET T BEFT BEFT BETT
As at 31st December, 2016 HR-ZT—X<E+-F=+—H 2,521 51 553 1,889 1 1
As at 31st December, 2015 R=-FT—AF+-A=+—H 896 50 744 2,013 11 11
20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 20. B E SR IE & H i FE 1
ACCRUALS MIE LR FE 5T R
2016 2015
—E—RE —T—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
‘BT BT
Trade payables FE B 5 A 210,190 —
Other payables (note) H A fE A 5k 78 (Bt 7)) 13,218 13,404
Accruals J& 5t R K 2,767 2,877
226,175 16,281

BEEmZFHEEHR4HB - ~E
BERTZ MBS EREEBEK - AR
MERNFRBEHAREHRERALE -
UMTRRBERARZ BN ESERKEE

The average credit period on purchase of goods is 40 days. The
Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure
that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe. The

following is an aged analysis of trade payables at the end of

the reporting period:

e DT -
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20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALSKMM%W

21.

22.

90

0 to 30 days

OHZ30H

Trade and other payables that are denominated in currencies

other than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities

are set out below:

As at 31st December, 2016
As at 31st December, 2015

Note:

n=
n=

Included in other payables are HK$12,705,000 (2015: HK$12,722,000) due to the

joint operator of the joint operation disclosed in note 16. The amount is unsecured,

interest-free and no fixed term of repayment.

AMOUNTS DUE TO INTERMEDIATE
HOLDING COMPANY/ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY/FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts due to intermediate holding company, ultimate

holding company and fellow subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-

free and repayable on demand. The amounts are denominated

in RMB, being the currency other than the functional currency

of the relevant group entities.

DEFERRED TAXATION

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of HK$71,101,000 (2015: HK$44,198,000) available

for offset against future profits.

No deferred tax asset has

been recognised for the year in respect of the tax losses

of HK$71,101,000

(2015:

HK$44,198,000)

due to the

unpredictability of future profits streams. The tax losses may be

carried forward indefinitely.

CNNC International Limited
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20.

22.

.UHEEJ%EE&E E {+F
RIELREST R
2016 2015
—E—RE & — R &
HK$"000 HK$/000
BET T BT T
210,190 —
TXEHINEBEBER 2L E ¥
NNz B FIEZREKRE SRR R E
b & U =Kk I8
MNT HKS
ElER g
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
12,904 314
13,226 10
Mier: HMEMNRBEBEHFI6HAIEERMNEEEL

Z%H%@%%z;ﬁwn 705,000 (ZZ— R & :
75 %12,722,0007T) - ZERBRAEERTF - £ 8
BERRETEEREAR -

1. BB NEERAS RB&
ERAS ABRMEBL
SIS
ERHRNERAR - KR ERAGR
RBRMERARIREREERR 28
RIZBEREERE - ZHRBEUAARE D
HEASEEEBINEEE N )7
18 o

iE 3E B 18
RMEBMKR  NEB 2 RE A IEE
B A %71,101,0000 (=T — A F:
75 #44,198,0007T) - A AR I H &
= A o B 7N BE TR ORI B 18 & F 2ROR
$W$E}Eﬁﬁi?dtﬁléi)§ﬂa,%ﬁ%71,101,0007c
— R F : B #44,198,0000T) FE R
BEEMRIBEE - MR R R A4
ﬁq o
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23. SHARE CAPITAL 23. g &

24,

Number of ordinary shares Amount
LERSE ok |
2016 2015 2016 2015
—¥—-R"E T hLF ZF¥-—-RE —_T—1F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Ordinary shares of BREEZK0.01TTZ
HK$0.01 each Tk
Authorised: VA TE
At 1st January and R—A—BK
31st December +=—A=+—H 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 10,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRHAR:
At 1st January and R—A—BRK
31st December +=—A=+—H 489,168,308 489,168,308 4,892 4,892

RESERVES

The capital reserve mainly represents the aggregate amount
of the deemed capital contribution of approximately
HK$50,723,000 from CNNC Overseas arising on acquisition of
Ideal Mining and deemed capital contribution of approximately
HK$30,748,000 from former substantial shareholders of the
Company in respect of shortfall of the guaranteed net assets
value of the Company’s certain major subsidiaries for the sale
of the Company’s equity interests to CNNC Overseas during the
year ended 31st December, 2010.

The non-distributable reserve represents the aggregate amount
of the share premium of the subsidiaries as at the time of a
group reorganisation effected on 13th December, 2002 (the
“Group Reorganisation”).

The merger reserve represents the difference between the
aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the
subsidiaries and the nominal amount of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange thereof pursuant to the Group

Reorganisation.

24. % 1&

EXAFEEETEERZEIIBRKRBEER
B ZE W AR BT & 2 #9785 50,723,000
TRARNFBHNEZERIER B FEZ
#4975 #30,748,000L (RBE-ZE—F
F+ZA=+—HLEFERFZEIH
HEARARBICRERSBRARAE
FEEMBRRAIZEEREEFEZ
KB 2 HBEE o

NADkFEEHEER_ZEZE_F+_HA
+=HETEBEA(EB=AH])RE
BEAR 2R EERTE -

EHFEEARBEEEEANHEAR
PR AN B 4R 7R B K A B EROB B IR
ABETEMEAEBEZIMZIER -
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

92

The Company adopted a share option scheme for a period
of ten years commencing 11th December, 2002 pursuant to a
written resolution of all shareholders passed on 11th December,
2002 (“2002 Share Option Scheme”), for the primary purpose of
providing incentives or rewards to directors of the Company and
eligible employees of the Group. The 2002 Share Option Scheme
expired and was terminated on 11th December, 2012. A new
share option scheme was adopted by the Company pursuant
to a resolution passed on 31st May, 2013 (“2013 Share Option
Scheme”). Under the 2002 Share Option Scheme and 2013
Share Option Scheme, the Company may grant options to eligible
employees and directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to
subscribe for shares in the Company. Additionally, the Company
may, from time to time, grant share options to outside eligible
advisors and consultants to the Company and its subsidiaries at
the discretion of its board of directors.

The number of shares which may be issued under the schemes
are subject to the following limits:

(i) the maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the schemes and any
other share option scheme of the Company must not
in aggregate exceed 30% of the total number of issued
shares of the Company from time to time;

(i) without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders,
the total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the schemes and any other share option
scheme is not permitted to exceed 22,000,000 shares and
48,916,830 shares for the 2002 Share Option Scheme and
2013 Share Option Scheme respectively, representing 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company at the dates
approving the schemes; and

(iii)  the number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of such grant.

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable upon acceptance of
the grant of the option. The exercise price is determined by the
directors of the Company and will be at least the higher of (i)
the average of the closing prices of the ordinary shares of the
Company for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of the grant; (ii) the closing price of the ordinary shares
of the Company on the date of the grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the ordinary shares of the Company.
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25.

H B RE 5T &l
BEI2EREFNR-_ZE_F+-/A+
—HREBZEBRZR A2 ABE#H
Mm—IEEREFE(ZZEZE_FER
B Ell) AT _F+=-_A+—H
RBAEHTF TZEHNARARAE
ERAEELEREERES Bk E
B  —EE_FHREIE R
RZZE—ZZF+Z A+ —HKIE - 1RIE
R-ZE—=FFA=1+—HBBBZR
R AQRDRMA—IEH B IR E
E(ZZE—=FERETE]) - BE=
ST _FERENER T —=FE
B2 ARF A EEERETA
RAREHBARZAEREERS
o LREARAQRARG o I BA
REIZEZRZHMBERE A RERH
BRETAQARREMNBARZ IR
AERERRZHER -

REZSAETTRITZBROBAR
THARR :

(i) BIEZFTERAREEMAEM
RE M 5T B AT AR AR D BB AR P
BRIRHEE LR - &HTEHE
BARATREETROBEE Z
30%

(i) FERESAARBRES LU A
AT - IRIE % AT 8 & A ] E At BE
MR R ET BT RE R LB RS R 2
EHRE T _FHERE
SrER—E—=FERETEM
= 2 Bl A~ 15 822,000,000 % &
48,916,8300% * M E RNIEZ =53
EHLEHBARRIEHITRAZ
10% : &

(i) AEA—FARAEE R ALE
HEERES R 2D EE - T15
BBRARFTRZERLAHER
TR 21% ©

REMNRLBRER AN BEITR
HBARE - TEERARRESFET
BRABERTIESE  )VARAE
BERAZEERDAHIAERSHZF
BWTHE : (ARAEBERNE LB S
ZWTHE: R(iARBERKEE -
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

Any options granted under the schemes must be exercised during
such option period as may be determined and notified by the
directors of the Company, which shall not exceed 10 years from
the date of acceptance of the option.

No options have been granted under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme and the 2013 Share Option Scheme since their
adoption.

26. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes amounts due to intermediate holding company, ultimate
holding company and fellow subsidiaries, net of cash and cash
equivalents, and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising share capital and reserves as disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
annually. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
assess the annual budget prepared by management of the
Company. Based on the proposed annual budget, the directors
of the Company consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with capital. The directors of the Company also
balance its overall capital structure through new share issues of
the Company as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption
of existing debt.

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(@) Categories of financial instruments

25. RSl
BEZEFEREZ2EMBREAR
ARRIEETEEN DM o2 EHBRE
HEATE EEBAETEEGEEBRKR
HEEEZNE BREI0F °

BT _FBRESER-F =
FREMBERT B ERMAAR W ERIE
%SRBI R AT A R AR -

26. EXEPEER
AEBEBRBEEAUBRAEEER
BEemEELE  RNERELER
Dz FEERRBRIEE RS o &
SECERRIBRE FFEEETE o

AEBZEARBEREER  %FE
BERENFNMERAR  RER
RALEAHREAMBRARRE Rk
ReSBYFENREARRERAR
HEn (BREAVBREMBEZR
ARl

ARREEBFENERARE - ER
HEHZ B0 AABDNEEFHAR
AIEEERRIFEBELEITHMG -
RERZZFERE ARAEZEE
BARAREEABBZEAR - AR
AIEFMEBARB BT RELT
MESXBELARBEFATFEHEER
BARE -

27. &FTH
() ETEZER

2016 2015
—E—-RE —T—AhF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
EETT ok
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables (including cash and &5k & & Yk 7008 (B 53R
cash equivalents) ERREEED) 455,427 352,872
Financial liabilities SRAE
Amortised cost 55 KR 228,138 16,594

FRBERERAR | —E-AsE®R 93
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continues)

94

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, bank balances, trade and other payables
and amounts due to intermediate holding company,
ultimate holding company and fellow subsidiaries. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.

Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets include trade and
other receivables and bank balances and cash. The Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations as at
31st December, 2016 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In this regard, the management
of the Group considers that the credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 63% (2015:
Nil) of the total trade receivables was due from the Group’s
largest customer within the trading of mineral property
segment.

In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual receivable at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
recognised for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the Group's
exposure to bad debts and concentration risk is reduced.
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
Credit risk on bank balances is limited because the

counterparties are banks with good reputation.

Market risk

27. €t TR
(b) 2rtEMGEEHERBE

(%)

EER =)
HREFHAEERTEEZRE
T HMBTTEBRZEERRA

R o

wE AR

() Foreign currency risk management () IMNEJE B B HE
While most of the Group’s operations are transacted BEAEBRIBMDEBD
in the functional currencies of the respective group NEEEERBZ2NEE
entities, the Group undertakes certain transactions T EAEEESTET
denominated in foreign currencies. The Group NINEAF B 2R - A&
currently has not formulated any hedging policies EIEN S = S
against its exposure to currency risk. However, the Il TE () $ R ER o SAT
Group manages its foreign currency risk by closely N EE B ) B AN E
monitoring the movement of the foreign currency fE =2 BB IR HINE RS -
rate and will consider hedging significant foreign WK EFERERE LA
currency exposure should the need arise. BARINE R B o
The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary REBUINESFEZEE
assets and monetary liabilities denominated in BEIE®EEERMER
foreign currencies at the end of both reporting FHRZEHEMAT
periods are as follows:
HK$ CAD MNT RMB Euro AUD
ot i BEHER AR 5874 BT
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETR BETR BT BETT BETI BETx
As at 31st December, 2016 R-T—x"E+=-A=+—H
Assets BE 2,630 51 4,300 1,889 1" 1"
Liabilities (& 2,389 — 12,905 4730 - -
As at 31st December, 2015 R-®¥-HAZF+=-A=+-—-H
Assets BE 896 50 4,484 2,013 " 11
Liabilities BfE 10 — 13,226 3,311 — —
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continueq)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i)

(i)

Foreign currency risk management (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 5% (2015:
US$ against the relevant foreign currencies. 5%

5%) increase and decrease in

(2015: 5%) represents management’s assessment
of the
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes

reasonably possible change in foreign

only outstanding foreign currencies denominated
monetary items at the end of the reporting period
and adjusted for a 5% (2015: 5%) change in foreign
currency rates. A positive number below indicates a
decrease in loss where US$ weakens 5% (2015: 5%)
against the relevant currencies. For a 5% (2015: 5%)
strengthening of US$ against the relevant currencies,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on
loss. Since HK$ is pegged to US$, relevant foreign
currency risk is minimal and is excluded from the
calculation below.

27. &M T R

(b) £FEMREEBEHERBE

(&)

i 45 Bl B )

() SR R )
BREE DT
TREFMAEBEETH
18 8 I FH 5% (& —

HF:5%) 2 BEE ° 5%
—E-—RF 5% RERE
EBHINEERAEHREZ
EREH TG FRE
DITE BN &S8R
RENZUINEINEEE
HE - AHINEERS% (=
T—HF:5%) B EELH
B -UTEREXTHRME
BEMREE% (ZT—1
F:5%) BEBMAED -
EXTAHBERES%
ZE—AF:5%) AL
BEREREHEARZZE -
RREREXITHE - %
HENERBRBE - AT
AERITAEREEA -

CAD MNT RMB Euro AUD
mxT EREX ARM Bk 5T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFLT BETT BETT BETr BETr
2016 ZE-RE
Decrease (increase) in loss for the year F 18R 2 (3 hn) 3 (430) (142) 1 1
2015 —B-4fF
Decrease (increase) in loss for the year F 18R 2 (38 hn) 3 (437) (65) 1 1
Interest rate risk (i) T E 7 fz

The Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates
is mainly attributable to its bank balances. Bank
balances at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest-rate risk. Details of the Group’s bank
balances are disclosed in note 19.

AEEBZNXEHEABREE
HRERITESRAR - %
FERERGFEBZEBITHER
ERAEHEARHRER
EMEER - AKRERT
AR BRI EI9WE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continveq

REMBREME

For the year ended 31st December, 2016 B EZE =T —AF+=-A=+—HIEFE

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continueq)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continuea)

(/'/) Interest rate risk (continued)
The Group is not exposed to significant cash flow
interest-rate risk on financial instruments as the
interest of the Group’s financial liabilities and
fluctuation in interest rate are insignificant. Also,
the directors of the Company consider that interest
bearing bank deposits are within short maturity
period and the effect on fluctuation in interest rate
is insignificant.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need
arise.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.

27. &M T R
(b) &R EMKREEBHERBE

(&)

i 45 Bl B )

(i) T E 7 fz m)
HRASEEREEZF
BEFRZREMAEE
WAEETER T A
mHEKRNREREFER
@ oo AN RRREER
B REFREBRITERD
EEEARE BRI ERK
B BETEM -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016 B EZE =T —AF+=-A=+—HIEFE

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continueq)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

(9]

policies (continued)

l.iqllidity risk (Continued)

The following table details Group’s contractual maturity for
its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed
repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be required
to pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash
flows.

27. €t TR
(b) 2rtEMGEEHERBE

()

HEE LB =
TERFVIASEETESRHERE
REBEHTEERIER ZELE BB
Moo ZRBIIBEARSEAIGEAE
NRzxFEBHzeRBERN
RRECTHERY - ZXBBEF
BEAeBERE -

Weighted On demand Total Total
average or less than undiscounted carrying
interest rate 30 days cash flows amount
i i BERS KUHBRE
FEHFE L2308 mELE RESE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% BT T BT BETT
As at 31st December, 2016 HR-B—R"E+=-HA=+—H
Trade and other payables ERESER R
H A & < 5ROR — 223,408 223,408 223,408
Amount due to intermediate holding company FER RN R AR KIE — 1,801 1,801 1,801
Amount due to ultimate holding company R SRR AR RIE — 2,407 2,407 2,407
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries RS RN E AR KA — 522 522 522
228,138 228,138 228,138
As at 31st December, 2015 R-Z¥—-AF+=-A=+-—H
Other payables H {5 — 13,404 13,404 13,404
Amount due to intermediate holding company FER RN R AR RIE — 1,596 1,596 1,596
Amount due to ultimate holding company B REERARRIE — 1,473 1,473 1,473
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ERRE RN E AR KA — 121 121 121
16,594 16,594 16,594
Fair value (0 2F{E

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements

approximate to their fair values.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016 B EZE=_ZT - "F+ A=+ B ILFE

28.

29.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had outstanding
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases for rented premises which fall due
as follows:

—FR
E_FEFRF

Within one year

In the second to fifth year inclusive

(BREREMF)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for certain of its office. Leases are negotiated for a terms of 1
to 3 years initially and rentals are fixed and no arrangements
have been entered into for contingent rental payments.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Effective from 1st December, 2000, the Group has participated
in a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
for all its eligible employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme
is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of an
independent trustee. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at rates specified in the rules. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme
is to make the required contributions under the scheme. No
forfeited contributions are available to reduce the contribution
payable in the future years.

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
Mongolia, the Group participates in defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes (“the Schemes”) organised by the
Government of Mongolia whereby the Group is required to
make contributions to the Schemes at a rate of 11%-13% of the
eligible employees’ salaries. Contributions to the Schemes vest
immediately.

During the year, the total amount contributed by the Group to
the relevant retirement benefit schemes is HK$57,000 (2015:
HK$97,000).

28.

29.

GEHERIE
RBERR - ARERERERY %
HU T ARBEEAE  RTHF
#5042 5% (618 B 16 S 7R B A
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2016 2015
—E—-RE —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETRT VS T
406 1,105

532 —

938 1,105
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30. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

respectively.

()

(ii)

30. I E R W2

The following transactions and balances were entered into during AT RS K& DRI RERNE R
the year or outstanding at the end of the reporting period MEBRAKERE -
Remuneration of directors and other () EERHEBEIEEEER
members of key management =P
The remuneration of directors and other members of key FRNEENEMETZEERENE
management during the year was as follows: ZHMEmT
2016 2015
—¥—-REF —T—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETT BT T
Short-term benefits 52 B 48 A 4,308 4,566
Post-employment benefits RIKEE 31 67
4,339 4,633
The remuneration of directors and key executives is FNEEEEZRESZREZETH
determined by the remuneration committee having regard ABZEBIRE KT8 E&E
to the performance of individuals and market trends. TE 1R E 2 Fr B o
Transactions and balances with PRC (i) RPERPEBFHERE
government-related entities in the PRC BzXeRE&EH

The Group operates in an economic environment currently
pre-dominated by entities controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by the PRC government.

In addition, the Group itself is part of a larger group of
companies under CNNC which is controlled by the PRC
government. The transactions and balances are disclosed

in note 21.

AEEEBZREBERERNADE
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30. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continved)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Transactions and balances with PRC
government-related entities in the PRC
(Continued)

The Group has also entered into various transactions,
including deposits placements with certain banks and
financial institutions which are PRC government-related
entities in its ordinary course of business. The directors of
the Company are of the opinion that except as disclosed
above, transactions with other PRC government related
entities are not significant to the Group’s operations.

During the year ended 31st December, 2016, the Group
paid rental and related expenses of HK$1,334,000 (2015:
HK$2,096,000) to the ultimate holding company, for its
office in Beijing, the PRC. The related party transaction
does not constitute a disclosed continuing connected
transaction as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

During the year ended 31st December, 2015, the Group
recognised accrued interest of HK$2,054,000 on the
amount due from an associate.

30. BHE S E o)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)
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31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 3. FAFHBKRARBER
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company at the end () RBMEHRAARMBHRRE:

of the reporting period:

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT I
Non-current assets IERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHB AR ZIKE 250,693 250,693
Amount due from a subsidiary R IS NGIE /@ 48,804 48,641
299,497 299,334
Current assets mENE E
Other receivables and prepayments H b JE R IE A &
TE R E 145 145
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE UG B B A Bl R IB 48,747 36,824
Bank balances and cash RITHE B MR E 261,436 273,330
310,328 310,299
Current liability mEBE
Other payables and accruals H b JE S RIE LA R FE
e 956 1,224
Net current assets mENEEFE 309,372 309,075
Total assets less liabilities BEFE 608,869 608,409
Capital and reserves &% 7 I {7 15
Share capital fig 7% 4,892 4,892
Reserves G 603,977 603,517
608,869 608,409
(b) Statement of changes in equity (b) EXRBER
Non-
Share Share Capital distributable Translation Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
BE BROHEGE SX6E TUSREE BREMGE Rt @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETFT ABTL BETT BETFT  AETR BETFT BT
At 1st January, 2015 R-_T—A%&—HF—H 4,892 868,805 30,748 98,291 525 (258,765) 744,496
Loss and total comprehensive expense FHNEE R 2 E A £58
for the year — — — — — (136,087)  (136,087)
At 31st December, 2015 R-ZZE—RF+=-A=+—8 4,892 868,805 30,748 98,291 525 (394,852) 608,409
Profit and total comprehensive income FHNEE R 2EA X E58
for the year — — — — — 460 460

At 31st December, 2016 R=ZF—~"E+=-RA=+—8H 4,892 868,805 30,748 98,291 525 (394,392) 608,869
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32. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at the end of both

reporting periods are as follows:

32. AABEEMB AT FIE

A

N
7\
AN

RGN

REEREHR  ARF 2T EH B

Place of  Issued and fully paid Proportion of nominal value of issued/ registered
Name of subsidiary Place of incorporation operation share/ registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
ERTRYZRRY/
HEASEH & AR 3L 3 B BERE HRRF AATARACET /ERRATEZLLH TEEH
Directly Indirectly
HE [ #
2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-RE “T-1F Z¥F-~E —T-8fF
% % % %
China Nuclear International Corporation  British Virgin Islands (“BVI”)  Hong Kong Ordinary shares US$50,000 100 100 - — Investment holding
THREREEERAR ARABRES B 3B AR50,000% T 100 100 - — RARK
(XBEBRES])
CNNC International (HK) Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$10,000 — — 100 100 Service company
RRER(FR)ERAR 2 3 T3 R £ #10,000T - — 100 100 RH AR
Emeelt Mines LLC Mongolia Mongolia  Registered capital — — 100 100 Mineral exploration in the
US$10,000 Mongolia
Emeelt Mines LLC EE] EE] it M A& 4 10,0005 7T - — 100 100 REHRE
Ideal Mining BVI Hong Kong Registered capital 100 100 — — Investment holding
US$50,000
-t £3 ARABRES B &t A& 450,000 7T 100 100 - — RARK
Western Prospector Mongolia LLC Mongolia Mongolia  Registered capital - — 100 100 Mineral exploration in the
US$10,000 Mongolia
Western Prospector Mongolia LLC E EE AR A510,000% 7T — — 100 100 REERE
Focus International Development BVI Hong Kong Ordinary shares US$50,000 - = 100 100 Trading of uranium
Corporation
EHERERERAA ERERRES ) 3 50,000 7T — — 100 100 HERES

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt
end of the year.

securities at the

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,

in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results,

assets and liabilities of the Group. To give details of other

subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in

particulars of excessive length.
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Financial Summary
BHME

Set out below is a financial summary of the Group for each of the AR AEBMEFEE—_ZT—F+-_A=+
five years ended 31st December, 2016: —BLRABERFEFESF2HMBHE:

RESULTS ¥4

For the year ended 31st December,
BE+-_A=+—BHLEE
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
—E—F —T—=F _TWNF —T-—hF ZFT—RE
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
A TT BT BETT ABETR EBTR

Revenue Y 25 417,442 1,168,097 520,380 57,755 189,429
Loss before taxation BRI RTE B (23,184) (4,749) (156,223)  (220,599) (28,192)
Taxation P18 (2,954) (13,864) (174) — —
Loss for the year FRNEE (26,138) (18,613)  (156,397)  (220,599) (28,192)
Loss per share FREiE
— basic (HK cents) — BEAR(E) (5.3) (3.8) (32.0) (45.1) (5.8)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREBR
As at 31st December,
R+=-HA=+—H
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

—E—F ZE—=F —T—NF —_T—1F ZFT-RHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BETT BEBTT BT BETx BT

Total assets BEE 1,395,599 994,570 832,495 608,716 792,148
Total liabilities BAEE (430,852) (47,599) (41,899)  (38,831) (250,265)
Equity attributable to owners ARAR#E A A

of the Company JE 1 72 964,747 946,971 790,596 569,885 541,883
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